Thomson David Form 4 August 28, 2009

FORM 4

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF

SECURITIES

OMB APPROVAL OMB

3235-0287 Number: January 31, Expires:

2005 Estimated average

burden hours per response... 0.5

Check this box if no longer subject to Section 16. Form 4 or Form 5

obligations

1(b).

(C:+-)

Filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 17(a) of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 or Section may continue. 30(h) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 See Instruction

(Print or Type Responses)

(Ctata)

(7:n)

1. Name and Addi Thomson Davi		ng Person *	2. Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading Symbol MANNKIND CORP [MNKD]	5. Relationship of Reporting Person(s) to Issuer (Check all applicable)
(Last)	(First)	(Middle)	3. Date of Earliest Transaction	(Check all applicable)
			(Month/Day/Year)	Director 10% Owner
28903 NORTH AVENUE PAINE		PAINE	08/15/2009	X Officer (give title Other (specify below)
				VP & General Counsel
	(Street)		4. If Amendment, Date Original	6. Individual or Joint/Group Filing(Check
			Filed(Month/Day/Year)	Applicable Line)
VALENCIA, O	CA 91355			_X_ Form filed by One Reporting Person Form filed by More than One Reporting Person

(City)	(State)	(Zip) Tabl	e I - Non-D	Derivative	Secui	rities Acqu	ired, Disposed of	or Beneficiall	y Owned
1.Title of Security (Instr. 3)	2. Transaction Date (Month/Day/Year)	2A. Deemed Execution Date, if any (Month/Day/Year)	3. Transaction Code (Instr. 8)	4. Securi or(A) or Di (Instr. 3,	spose 4 and (A)	d of (D)	5. Amount of Securities Beneficially Owned Following Reported Transaction(s)	6. Ownership Form: Direct (D) or Indirect (I) (Instr. 4)	7. Nature of Indirect Beneficial Ownership (Instr. 4)
			Code V	Amount	or (D)	Price	(Instr. 3 and 4)		
Common Stock, \$.01 Par Value	08/15/2009		F(1)		D	\$ 7.37	119,995	D	
Common Stock, \$.01 Par Value	08/16/2009		F(1)	344	D	\$ 7.37	119,651	D	
Common Stock, \$.01 Par Value	08/27/2009		S	7,306 (2)	D	\$ 7.8443	112,345	D	

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially owned directly or indirectly.

Persons who respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

SEC 1474 (9-02)

Table II - Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned (e.g., puts, calls, warrants, options, convertible securities)

1. Title of	2.	3. Transaction Date	3A. Deemed	4.	5.	6. Date Exerc	cisable and	7. Title	e and	8. Price of	9. Nu
Derivative	Conversion	(Month/Day/Year)	Execution Date, if	Transacti	orNumber	Expiration D	ate	Amou	nt of	Derivative	Deriv
Security	or Exercise		any	Code	of	(Month/Day/	Year)	Under	lying	Security	Secui
(Instr. 3)	Price of		(Month/Day/Year)	(Instr. 8)	Derivative	e		Securi	ties	(Instr. 5)	Bene
	Derivative				Securities			(Instr.	3 and 4)		Own
	Security				Acquired						Follo
	·				(A) or						Repo
					Disposed						Trans
					of (D)						(Instr
					(Instr. 3,						Ì
					4, and 5)						
									Amount		
						Date	Expiration		or		
						Exercisable	Date		Number		
									of		
				Code V	(A) (D)				Shares		

Reporting Owners

Reporting Owner Name / Address Relationships

Director 10% Owner Officer Other

Thomson David 28903 NORTH AVENUE PAINE VALENCIA, CA 91355

VP & General Counsel

Signatures

/s/ David

Thomson 08/27/2009

**Signature of Person Date

Reporting Person

Explanation of Responses:

- * If the form is filed by more than one reporting person, see Instruction 4(b)(v).
- ** Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal Violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).
- (1) Shares withheld to satisfy the tax liability incident to the vesting of previously reported restricted stock units.
- (2) Transaction occurred pursuant to a 10B5-1 Plan entered into as part of a divorce settlement.

Note: File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed. If space is insufficient, *see* Instruction 6 for procedure. Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB number. e="font-family:inherit;font-size:8pt;">1,981

Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks

_

Reporting Owners 2

_	
_	
_	
_	
_	
1,000	
1,004	
1,000	
1,004	
Pooled trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers —	
_	
_	

Small business administration pooled securities —
_
_
_
55,961
54,336
55,961
54,336
Total available for sale securities \$ 278
\$ 281
\$ 65,948
\$ 64,448
\$ 112,857
\$ 109,469
\$ 271,412

\$ 261,663		
\$ 450,495		
\$ 435,861		
Held to maturity securities		

\$

\$ 	
\$ 	
\$ 1,004	
\$ 1,006	
Agency mortgage-backed securities —	
12,442	
12,191	
37,473	
36,481	
139,564	
135,416	
189,479	
184,088	
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations —	
_	

Edgar Filing: Thomson David - Form 4 941 936 335,405 322,580 336,346 323,516 Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks 1,500 1,490

Explanation of Responses:

Small business administration pooled securities

1,500

1,490

25,376 24,522 25,376 24,522 Total held to maturity securities \$ 13,446 \$ 13,197 \$ 39,914 \$ 38,907 \$ 500,345 \$ 482,518

\$

553,705

\$ 534,622

Inclusive in the table above is \$6.3 million of callable securities at September 30, 2018.

The carrying value of securities pledged to secure public funds, trust deposits, repurchase agreements and for other purposes, as required or permitted by law, was \$523.6 million and \$547.2 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had no investments in obligations of individual states, counties, or municipalities which exceeded 10% of stockholders' equity.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment ("OTTI")

The Company continually reviews investment securities for the existence of OTTI, taking into consideration current market conditions, the extent and nature of changes in fair value, issuer rating changes and trends, the credit worthiness of the obligor of the security, volatility of earnings, current analysts' evaluations, the Company's intent to sell the security, whether it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery, as well as other qualitative factors. The term "other-than-temporary" is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospects for a near-term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support a realizable value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment.

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's investments in an unrealized loss position, which the Company has not deemed to be OTTI, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position:

Santambar 30, 2018

	September 30, 2018							
	Less than 12		months	12 months or	longer	Total		
	# of h	Fair oldings Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	
	(Dolla	ars in thousand	s)					
U.S. government agency securities	3	\$31,572	\$(907)	\$ —	\$ —	\$31,572	\$(907)
Agency mortgage-backed securities	154	284,810	(8,375)	77,412	(3,662)	362,222	(12,037)
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	57	294,626	(8,847)	154,168	(10,213)	448,794	(19,060)
Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	1	1,490	(10)	_	_	1,490	(10)
Pooled trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	1	_	_	1,800	(359)	1,800	(359)
Small business administration pooled securities Total temporarily impaired securities		38,264 \$650,762	(685) \$(18,824)	40,594 \$273,974	() /	78,858 \$924,736	(2,479 \$(34,852))

	Dece	mber 31, 2017						
	Less than 12		2 months 12 month		longer	Total		
	# of h	Fair oldings Value	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealized	Fair	Unrealized	
			Losses	Value	Losses	Value	Losses	
	(Doll	ars in thousand	ls)					
U.S.government agency securities	4	\$24,343	\$(131)	\$ —	\$ —	\$24,343	\$(131)
Agency mortgage-backed securities	84	235,411	(1,493)	14,886	(310)	250,297	(1,803)
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	42	178,142	(1,579)	159,506	(5,572)	337,648	(7,151)
Pooled trust preferred securities issued by banks	1			1,640	(539)	1,640	(539	`
and insurers	1	_	_	1,040	(339)	1,040	(339	,
Small business administration pooled securities	4	34,553	(223)	9,647	(95)	44,200	(318)
Equity securities	28	3,290	(39)	7,619	(403)	10,909	(442)
Total temporarily impaired securities	163	\$475,739	\$(3,465)	\$193,298	\$(6,919)	\$669,037	\$(10,384)

The Company does not intend to sell these investments and has determined, based upon available evidence, that it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell each security before the recovery of its amortized cost basis. As a result, the Company does not consider these investments to be OTTI and accordingly, there was no OTTI recorded and no cumulative credit related component of OTTI for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017. The Company made this determination by reviewing various qualitative and quantitative factors regarding each investment category, such as current market conditions, extent and nature of changes in fair value, issuer rating changes and trends, volatility of earnings, and current analysts' evaluations.

As a result of the Company's review of these qualitative and quantitative factors, the causes of the impairments listed in the table above by category are as follows at September 30, 2018:

U.S. Government Agency Securities, Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities, Agency Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Small Business Administration Pooled Securities: These portfolios have contractual terms that generally do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the current par value of the investment. The decline in market value of these securities is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality. Additionally, these securities are implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government or one of its agencies.

Table of Contents

Single Issuer Trust Preferred Securities: This portfolio consists of one security, which is investment grade. The unrealized loss on this security is attributable to the illiquid nature of the trust preferred market in the current economic environment. Management evaluates various financial metrics for the issuers, including regulatory capital ratios of the issuers.

Pooled Trust Preferred Securities: This portfolio consists of one below investment grade security which is performing. The unrealized loss on this security is attributable to the illiquid nature of the trust preferred market in the current economic and regulatory environment. Management evaluates collateral credit and instrument structure, including current and expected deferral and default rates and timing. In addition, discount rates are determined by evaluating comparable spreads observed currently in the market for similar instruments.

NOTE 4 - LOANS, ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES, AND CREDIT QUALITY

The following tables bifurcate the amount of loans and the allowance allocated to each loan category based on the type of impairment analysis as of the periods indicated:

	September (Dollars in	· ·						
	`	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Commercial Construction		Residentia Real Estat	l e Home Equity	Other Consumer	Total
Financing receivables ending balance:								
Collectively evaluated for impairment	\$972,842	\$ 3,114,414	\$ 352,491	\$148,609	\$ 784,533	\$ 1,067,389	\$ 13,425	\$6,453,703
Individually evaluated for impairment	\$30,938	\$ 13,023	\$ —	\$591	\$ 12,825	\$ 6,410	\$ 244	\$64,031
Purchased credit impaired loans	\$—	\$ 5,054	\$ —	\$—	\$ 4,452	\$ 162	\$ —	\$9,668
Total loans by group	\$1,003,780	\$ 3,132,491	\$ 352,491	\$149,200	\$ 801,810	\$ 1,073,961	\$ 13,669	\$6,527,402(1)
	December	· /						
	(Dollars in							
	Commercia	alo anc hercial			Residential Real Estate	Home Equity	Other Consumer	Total
Financing receivables ending balance:	Commercial Industrial	alo anc hercial						Total
Financing receivables ending balance: Collectively evaluated for impairment	Commercie Industrial	Aloanthercial Real Estate	Construction		Real Estate	Home Equity	Consumer	Total \$6,269,729
e e	Commercial Industrial S	Alcamhercial Real Estate \$ 3,093,945	Construction	Business \$131,667	Real Estate	Home Equity \$ 1,045,053	Consumer \$ 9,573	
Collectively evaluated for impairment	**Commercial Industrial ** \$853,885 ** \$34,643 **	\$ 3,093,945 \$ 16,638	Construction \$ 401,797	Business \$131,667 \$703	Real Estate \$ 733,809	Home Equity \$ 1,045,053 \$ 6,826	Consumer \$ 9,573 \$ 307	\$6,269,729

The amount of net deferred costs on originated loans included in the ending balance was \$6.9 million and \$6.1 million at September 30, 2018 and

⁽¹⁾ December 31, 2017, respectively. Net unamortized discounts on acquired loans not deemed to be purchased credit impaired ("PCI") included in the ending balance was \$8.6 million and \$9.4 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

\$1,606 \$ 2,776 \$ 5,426

\$ 452

\$59,710

Table of Contents

The following tables summarize changes in allowance for loan losses by loan category for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Sontomber 30, 2018

		onths Ended S n thousands)	September 30, 2	2018				
			Commercial Construction		Residential Real Estate	Home Equity	Other Consumer	Total
Allowance for loan losses								
Beginning balance	\$14,788	\$ 32,095	\$ 5,216	\$ 1,709	\$ 2,909	\$ 5,468	\$ 372	\$62,557
Charge-offs	(218	(82)	_	(111)	_	(87)	(349)	(847)
Recoveries	108	29	_	10	9	71	223	450
Provision (benefit)	430	226	(189)	160	153	102	193	1,075
Ending balance	\$15,108	\$ 32,268	\$ 5,027	\$ 1,768	\$ 3,071	\$ 5,554	\$ 439	\$63,235
		onths Ended S n thousands)	September 30, 2	2017				
			Commercial		Residential	II II	Other	Total
Allowance for loan losses	industria	al Real Estate	Construction	Business	Real Estate	Home Equity	Consumer	
Beginning balance	\$13,544	\$ 30,947	\$ 4,814	\$1,613	\$ 2,693	\$ 5,353	\$ 515	\$59,479
Charge-offs	(124)	_	_	(164)	(43)	(81)	(405)	(817)
Recoveries	404	286	_	17	15	65	261	1,048
Provision (benefit)	(994)	(233)	806	140	111	89	81	_

\$ 5,620

Ending balance

\$12,830 \$31,000

	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018										
	*	n thousands)	ial Commercial Small Residentia				Other				
			Construction			Home Equity		Total			
Allowance for loan losses											
Beginning balance	\$13,256	\$ 31,453	\$ 5,698	\$ 1,577	\$ 2,822	\$ 5,390	\$ 447	\$60,643			
Charge-offs	(355)	(82)	_	(237)	(148)	(261)	(926)	(2,009)			
Recoveries	179	67	_	29	12	128	611	1,026			
Provision (benefit)	2,028	830	(671)	399	385	297	307	3,575			
Ending balance	\$15,108	\$ 32,268	\$ 5,027	\$ 1,768	\$ 3,071	\$ 5,554	\$ 439	\$63,235			
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	\$15,101	\$ 32,234	\$ 5,027	\$ 1,767	\$ 2,197	\$ 5,386	\$ 426	\$62,138			
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$7	\$ 34	\$ —	\$1	\$ 874	\$ 168	\$ 13	\$1,097			
	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2017										
	(Dollars in	n thousands)									
			Commercial		Residential	XX XX 10	Other	Total			
Allowance for loan losses	Industria	i Real Estate	Construction	Business	Real Estate	Home Equity	Consumer				
Beginning balance	\$16,921	\$ 30,369	\$ 4,522	\$ 1,502	\$ 2,621	\$ 5,238	\$ 393	\$61,566			
		,	\$ 4,322								
Charge-offs Recoveries	(3,715) 604	— 343	_	(258) 96	(182) 29	(217) 167	(1,151) 778	(5,523)			
			_					2,017			
Provision (benefit)	(980)	288	1,098	266	308	238	432	1,650			
Ending balance								¢ 50 710			
	\$12,830	\$ 31,000	\$ 5,620	\$ 1,606	\$ 2,776	\$ 5,426	\$ 452	\$59,710			
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment		\$ 31,000 \$ 30,951	\$ 5,620 \$ 5,620	\$ 1,606	\$ 2,776	\$ 5,426 \$ 5,169	\$ 452 \$ 433	\$58,293			

For the purpose of estimating the allowance for loan losses, management segregates the loan portfolio into the portfolio segments detailed in the above tables. Each of these loan categories possesses unique risk characteristics that are considered when determining the appropriate level of allowance for each segment. Some of the risk characteristics unique to each loan category include:

Commercial Portfolio

Commercial and Industrial: Loans in this category consist of revolving and term loan obligations extended to business and corporate enterprises for the purpose of financing working capital and/or capital investment. Collateral generally consists of pledges of business assets including, but not limited to: accounts receivable, inventory, plant and equipment, or real estate, if applicable. Repayment sources consist of primarily, operating cash flow, and secondarily, liquidation of assets.

Commercial Real Estate: Loans in this category consist of mortgage loans to finance investment in real property such as multi-family residential, commercial/retail, office, industrial, hotels, educational and healthcare facilities and other specific use properties. Loans are typically written with amortizing payment structures. Collateral values are determined based upon third party appraisals and evaluations. Loan to value ratios at origination are governed by established policy and regulatory guidelines. Repayment sources consist of, primarily, cash flow from operating leases and rents and, secondarily, liquidation of assets.

Commercial Construction: Loans in this category consist of short-term construction loans, revolving and nonrevolving credit lines and construction/permanent loans to finance the acquisition, development and construction or rehabilitation of real property. Project types include residential 1-4 family, condominium and multi-family homes, commercial/retail, office, industrial, hotels, educational and healthcare facilities and other specific use properties.

Loans may be written with nonamortizing or hybrid payment structures depending upon the type of project.

Collateral values are determined based upon third party appraisals and evaluations. Loan to value ratios at origination are governed by established policy and regulatory guidelines. Repayment sources vary depending upon the type of project and may consist of sale or lease of units, operating cash flows or liquidation of other assets.

Small Business: Loans in this category consist of revolving, term loan and mortgage obligations extended to sole proprietors and small businesses for purposes of financing working capital and/or capital investment. Collateral generally consists of pledges of business assets including, but not limited to, accounts receivable, inventory, plant and equipment, or real estate if applicable. Repayment sources consist primarily of operating cash flows and, secondarily, liquidation of assets.

For the commercial portfolio it is the Company's policy to obtain personal guarantees for payment from individuals holding material ownership interests of the borrowing entities.

Consumer Portfolio

Residential Real Estate: Residential mortgage loans held in the Company's portfolio are made to borrowers who demonstrate the ability to make scheduled payments with full consideration to underwriting factors such as current and expected income, employment status, current assets, other financial resources, credit history and the value of the collateral. Collateral consists of mortgage liens on 1-4 family residential properties. Residential mortgage loans also include loans to construct owner-occupied 1-4 family residential properties.

Home Equity: Home equity loans and credit lines are made to qualified individuals and are primarily secured by senior or junior mortgage liens on owner-occupied 1-4 family homes, condominiums or vacation homes. Each home equity loan has a fixed rate and is billed in equal payments comprised of principal and interest. Each home equity line of credit has a variable rate and is billed in interest-only payments during the draw period. At the end of the draw period, the home equity line of credit is billed as a percentage of the then outstanding principal balance plus all accrued interest over a predetermined repayment period, as set forth in the note. Additionally, the Company has the option of renewing each line of credit for additional draw periods. Borrower qualifications include favorable credit history combined with supportive income requirements and combined loan to value ratios within established policy guidelines.

Other Consumer: Other consumer loan products include personal lines of credit and amortizing loans made to qualified individuals for various purposes such as education, debt consolidation, personal expenses or overdraft protection. Borrower qualifications include favorable credit history combined with supportive income and collateral requirements within established policy guidelines. These loans may be secured or unsecured.

Credit Quality

The Company continually monitors the asset quality of the loan portfolio using all available information. Based on this information, loans demonstrating certain payment issues or other weaknesses may be categorized as adversely risk-rated, delinquent, impaired, nonperforming and/or put on nonaccrual status. Additionally, in the course of resolving such loans, the Company may choose to restructure the contractual terms of certain loans to match the borrower's ability to repay the loan based on their current financial condition. If a restructured loan meets certain criteria, it may be categorized as a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR").

The Company reviews numerous credit quality indicators when assessing the risk in its loan portfolio. For the commercial portfolio, the Company utilizes a 10-point credit risk-rating system, which assigns a risk-grade to each loan obligation based on a number of quantitative and qualitative factors associated with a commercial or small business loan transaction. Factors considered include industry and market conditions, position within the industry, earnings trends, operating cash flow, asset/liability values, debt capacity, guarantor strength, management and controls, financial reporting, collateral, and other considerations. The risk-ratings categories are defined as follows: 1-6 Rating — Pass: Risk-rating grades "1" through "6" comprise those loans ranging from 'Substantially Risk Free' which indicates borrowers are of unquestioned credit standing and the pinnacle of credit quality, well established companies with a very strong financial condition, and loans fully secured by cash collateral, through 'Acceptable Risk', which indicates borrowers may exhibit declining earnings, strained cash flow, increasing or above average leverage and/or weakening market fundamentals that indicate below average asset quality, margins and market share. Collateral coverage is protective.

7 Rating — Potential Weakness: Borrowers exhibit potential credit weaknesses or downward trends deserving management's close attention. If not checked or corrected, these trends will weaken the Company's asset and position. While potentially weak, currently these borrowers are marginally acceptable; no loss of principal or interest is envisioned.

8 Rating — Definite Weakness Loss Unlikely: Borrowers exhibit well defined weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly liquidation of debt. Loan may be inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or by the collateral pledged, if any. Normal repayment from the borrower is in jeopardy, although no loss of principal is envisioned. However, there is a distinct possibility that a partial loss of interest and/or principal will occur if the deficiencies are not corrected. Collateral coverage may be inadequate to cover the principal obligation.

9 Rating — Partial Loss Probable: Borrowers exhibit well defined weaknesses that jeopardize the orderly liquidation of debt with the added provision that the weaknesses make collection of the debt in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. Serious problems exist to the point where partial loss of principal is likely.

10 Rating — Definite Loss: Borrowers deemed incapable of repayment. Loans to such borrowers are considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuation as active assets of the Company is not warranted. The credit quality of the commercial loan portfolio is actively monitored and any changes in credit quality are reflected in risk-rating changes. Risk-ratings are assigned or reviewed for all new loans, when advancing significant additions to existing relationships (over \$50,000), at least quarterly for all actively managed loans, and any time a significant event occurs, including at renewal of the loan.

The Company utilizes a comprehensive strategy for monitoring commercial credit quality. Actively managed commercial borrowers are required to provide updated financial information at least annually which is carefully evaluated for any changes in credit quality. Larger loan relationships are subject to a full annual credit review by an experienced credit analysis group, while continuous portfolio monitoring techniques are employed to evaluate changes in credit quality for smaller loan relationships. Additionally, the Company retains an independent loan review firm to evaluate the credit quality of the commercial loan portfolio. The independent loan review process achieves significant penetration into the commercial loan portfolio and reports the results of these reviews to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

The following tables detail the amount of outstanding principal balances relative to each of the risk-rating categories for the Company's commercial portfolio:

		September 30,	, 2018			
Category	Risk Rating	Commercial and Industrial	Commercial Real Estate	Commercial Construction	Small Rugines	s Total
		(Dollars in thou				
Pass	1 - 6	\$935,769	\$3,041,551	1 \$352,190	\$ 146,809	\$4,476,319
Potential weakness	7	17,655	52,089	301	1,053	71,098
Definite weakness-loss unlikely	8	45,399	38,453	_	1,338	85,190
Partial loss probable	9	4,957	398	_	_	5,355
Definite loss	10	_		_	_	_
Total		\$1,003,780	\$3,132,491	1 \$352,491	\$ 149,200	\$4,637,962
		December 31,	2017			
Category	Risk Rating	Commercial	Commercial	Commercial Construction	Small Business	Total
Category		Commercial and	Commercial Real Estate		Small Business	Total
Category Pass		Commercial and Industrial (Dollars in those	Commercial Real Estate	Construction		Total \$4,345,232
·	Rating	Commercial and Industrial (Dollars in thou \$806,331	Commercial Real Estate usands)	Construction \$400,964	\$ 130,265	
Pass	Rating 1 - 6 7	Commercial and Industrial (Dollars in thou \$806,331 & 16,563	Commercial Real Estate usands) \$3,007,672 69,788	Construction \$400,964	\$ 130,265 1,471	\$4,345,232
Pass Potential weakness	Rating 1 - 6 7	Commercial and Industrial (Dollars in thore \$806,331 and 16,563 and 59,415	Commercial Real Estate usands) \$3,007,672 69,788	\$400,964 — 833	\$ 130,265 1,471 631	\$4,345,232 87,822
Pass Potential weakness Definite weakness-loss unlikely	Rating 1 - 6 7 8	Commercial and Industrial (Dollars in thore \$806,331 and 16,563 and 59,415	Commercial Real Estate usands) \$3,007,672 69,788 38,637	\$400,964 — 833	\$ 130,265 1,471 631	\$4,345,232 87,822 99,516

For the Company's consumer portfolio, the quality of the loan is best indicated by the repayment performance of an individual borrower. However, the Company does supplement performance data with current Fair Isaac Corporation ("FICO") scores and Loan to Value ("LTV") estimates. Current FICO data is purchased and appended to all consumer loans on a regular basis. In addition, automated valuation services and broker opinions of value are used to supplement original value data for the residential and home equity portfolios, periodically. The following table shows the weighted average FICO scores and the weighted average combined LTV ratios as of the periods indicated below:

	2018	2017	er 31,
Residential portfolio			
FICO score (re-scored)(1)	748	745	
LTV (re-valued)(2)	58.2 %	59.2	%
Home equity portfolio			
FICO score (re-scored)(1)	767	766	
LTV (re-valued)(2)(3)	48.9 %	50.1	%

The average FICO scores at September 30, 2018 are based upon rescores available from August 2018 and origination score data for loans booked in September (1) 2018. The average FICO scores at December 31, 2017 are based upon rescores available from August 2017 and origination score data for loans booked between September and December 2017.

The combined LTV ratios for September 30, 2018 are based upon updated automated valuations as of August 2018, when available or the most current valuation data available. The combined LTV ratios for December 31, 2017 are based upon updated automated valuations as of August 2017, when available

Asset Quality

The Company's philosophy toward managing its loan portfolios is predicated upon careful monitoring, which stresses early detection and response to delinquent and default situations. Delinquent loans are managed by a team of collection specialists and the Company seeks to make arrangements to resolve any delinquent or default situation over the shortest possible time frame. As a general rule, loans more than 90 days past due with respect to principal or interest are classified as nonaccrual loans. The Company also may use discretion regarding other loans over 90 days delinquent if the loan is well secured and/or in process of collection.

The following table shows information regarding nonaccrual loans at the dates indicated:

	September	3December 31,
	2018	2017
	(Dollars in t	housands)
Commercial and industrial	\$28,742	\$ 32,055
Commercial real estate	1,960	3,123
Small business	191	230
Residential real estate	8,076	8,129
Home equity	6,367	6,022
Other consumer	49	71
Total nonaccrual loans (1)	\$45,385	\$ 49,630

⁽¹⁾Included in these amounts were \$3.4 million and \$6.1 million of nonaccruing TDRs at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

⁽²⁾ valuation data available. The combined LTV ratios for December 31, 2017 are based upon updated automated valuations as of August 2017, when available, or the most current valuation data available. The updated automated valuations provide new information on loans that may be available since the previous valuation was obtained. If no new information is available, the valuation will default to the previously obtained data or most recent appraisal.

⁽³⁾ For home equity loans and lines in a subordinate lien, the LTV data represents a combined LTV, taking into account the senior lien data for loans and lines.

The following table shows information regarding foreclosed residential real estate property at the dates indicated:

September 124; ember 31, 2018 2017 (Dollars in thousands) \$190 \$612

Foreclosed residential real estate property held by the creditor

Recorded investment in mortgage loans collateralized by residential real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure

\$3,880 \$ 2,971

The following tables show the age analysis of past due financing receivables as of the dates indicated:

_	September 30, 2018											
	30-59 days 60-89 days		89 days	90 days or Total Past more Due				Total		tment		
		n Bei ncipal o Bak ance		n Pbin cipal L Baha nce		n Pbin cipal L Baha nce		n Bri mcipal o Bak ance	Current	Financing Receivables	>90 I and Accr	·
	(Dol	lars in thou	sano	ds)								-8
Loan Portfolio												
Commercial and industrial	3	\$ 265	5	\$ 431	10	\$ 28,694	18	\$ 29,390	\$974,390	\$1,003,780	\$	_
Commercial real estate	7	2,188	5	849	6	1,430	18	4,467	3,128,024	3,132,491	_	
Commercial construction	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	352,491	352,491	_	
Small business	9	483	6	60	17	139	32	682	148,518	149,200	_	
Residential real estate	10	1,129	12	2,367	19	3,367	41	6,863	794,947	801,810	_	
Home equity	16	909	9	797	25	2,825	50	4,531	1,069,430	1,073,961	_	
Other consumer (1)	272	118	8	20	13	46	293	184	13,485	13,669	9	
Total	317	\$ 5,092	45	\$ 4,524	90	\$ 36,501	452	\$ 46,117	\$6,481,285	\$6,527,402	\$	9
	Dec	ember 31, 2	2017	7							_	
	30-5	9 days	60-	89 days	90 mo	days or	Tota Due	al Past		Total	Reco	rded stment
	of L	n Beincipal o Bakance lars in thou	of l	n Pbin cipal L Baha nce ds)	Nu		Nun		Current	Financing Receivables	>90 I	
Loan Portfolio												
Commercial and industrial	2	\$ 195	2	\$ 370	14	\$ 32,007	18	\$ 32,572	\$855,956	\$888,528	\$	_
Commercial real estate	7	3,060	_	_	9	1,793	16	4,853	3,111,708	3,116,561	_	
Commercial construction	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	401,797	401,797	_	
Small business	17	339	11	144	10	57	38	540	131,830	132,370	_	
Residential real estate												
	6	870	13	2,385	22	3,471	41	6,726	747,603	754,329	_	
Home equity	6 22	870 1,310	13 6	2,385 451		3,471 2,025	41 48	6,726 3,786	747,603 1,048,302	754,329 1,052,088	_	
Home equity Other consumer (1)	22		6		20		48				_ _ 8	

⁽¹⁾ Other consumer portfolio is inclusive of deposit account overdrafts recorded as loan balances.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

In the course of resolving nonperforming loans, the Bank may choose to restructure the contractual terms of certain loans. The Bank attempts to work out an alternative payment schedule with the borrower in order to avoid foreclosure actions. Any loans that are modified are reviewed by the Bank to identify if a TDR has occurred, which is when, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower's financial difficulties, the Bank grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider. Terms may be modified to fit the ability of the borrower to repay in line with its current financial status and the restructuring of the loan may include the transfer of assets from the borrower to satisfy the debt, a modification of loan terms, or a combination of the two.

The following table shows the Company's total TDRs and other pertinent information as of the dates indicated:

September	supecember 31,
2018	2017
(Dollars in	thousands)
\$24,554	\$ 25,852
3,370	6,067
\$27,924	\$ 31,919
\$1,097	\$ 1,342
\$1,224	\$ 487
	2018 (Dollars in the second se

The Company's policy is to have any restructured loan which is on nonaccrual status prior to being modified remain on nonaccrual status for six months subsequent to being modified before management considers its return to accrual status. If the restructured loan is on accrual status prior to being modified, it is reviewed to determine if the modified loan should remain on accrual status. Additionally, loans classified as TDRs are adjusted to reflect the changes in value of the recorded investment in the loan, if any, resulting from the granting of a concession. For all residential loan modifications, the borrower must perform during a 90 day trial period before the modification is finalized. The following tables show the modifications which occurred during the periods indicated and the change in the recorded investment subsequent to the modifications occurring:

	Three Months Ended				Nine Months Ended					
	Νι	Pre 160bt	estanfiding outsled	Out Rec	t-Modification tstanding corded	Nur	Pr n O c	nber 30, 2018 re-Modification extstånding extsrded	Outs	standing orded
	Œ		e stment s in thousands)		estment (1)		In	vestment	Inve	stment (1)
Troubled debt restructurings	,									
Commercial and industrial		\$	126	\$	126	2	\$	126	\$ 1	126
Commercial real estate	1	20:	5	203	5	2	65	50	650)
Residential real estate	3	503	3	523	3	4	65	52	672	2
Home equity	2	74		74		8	54	46	546	-)
Total	8	\$	908	\$	928	16	\$	1,974	\$ 1	1,994
	Tł	ree	Months Ended	i		Nin	e M	Ionths Ended		
			Months Endeonber 30, 2017	ì				Ionths Ended ober 30, 2017		
	Se Nu Co	pten Pre inbi	nber 30, 2017	Posi Out Rec Inve	t-Modification tstanding corded estment (1)	Sep	tem Pr mOc		Outs	-Modification standing orded stment (1)
Troubled debt restructurings	Se Ni Co	pten Pre inbi	nber 30, 2017 -Modification stantiding notsled estment	Posi Out Rec Inve	tstanding corded	Sep	tem Pr mOc	aber 30, 2017 re-Modification ratstfanding	Outs	standing orded
Troubled debt restructurings Commercial and industrial	Se Nu Co (D	pten Pre inhte inves	nber 30, 2017 -Modification stantiding notsled estment	Posi Out Rec Inve	tstanding corded	Sep	tem Pr n O c n tRa In	aber 30, 2017 re-Modification ratstfanding	Outs Reco Inve	standing orded
~	Se Nu Co (D	pten Pre inhte inves	nber 30, 2017 -Modification extanding metaled estment s in thousands)	Pos Out Rec Inv	tstanding corded estment (1)	Sep Nur Cor	tem Pr m@c ntRa In	aber 30, 2017 re-Modification ratsfunding rctsrded vestment	Outs Reco Inve	standing orded stment (1)
Commercial and industrial	Se Nu Co (D) S	pten Pre inhte inves	nber 30, 2017 -Modification stanfding wrisled estment s in thousands)	Pos Out Rec Inv	estanding corded estment (1)	Sep Nur Cor	Pr Pr mOo ntRa In	ther 30, 2017 re-Modification ratsfånding retsrded vestment 1,575 884	Outs Reco Inve	standing orded stment (1) 1,575
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate	Se Nu Co (D) S	pten Pre Inter Inve	nber 30, 2017 -Modification stanfding wrisled estment s in thousands)	Posi Out Rec Inve	estanding corded estment (1)	Sep Nur Cor	Pr Pr mOo ntRa In	aber 30, 2017 re-Modification catsfinding retsrded vestment 1,575 884	Outs Reco Inve	standing orded stment (1)
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business	Se Nu Co (D S 1 2	pten Pre Inter Inve	nber 30, 2017 -Modification extanding wetsled estment s in thousands)	Posi Out Rec Inve	standing forded estment (1)	Sep Nur Cor 9 6 10 5	Printent Pri	aber 30, 2017 re-Modification catsfinding retsrded vestment 1,575 884	Outs Reco Inve	standing orded stment (1) 1,575 84

The post-modification balances represent the legal principal balance of the loan on the date of modification. These amounts may show an increase when modifications include a capitalization of interest.

The following table shows the Company's post-modification balance of TDRs listed by type of modification during the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended		
	Septem	ber 30	September 30		
	2018	2017	2018	2017	
	(Dollars thousan		(Dollars in	thousands)	
Extended maturity	\$617	\$486	\$1,062	\$4,565	
Combination rate and maturity	237	196	237	196	
Court ordered concession	74	133	695	1,475	
Total	\$928	\$815	\$1,994	\$6,236	

The Company considers a loan to have defaulted when it reaches 90 days past due. As of September 30, 2018, there were no loans modified during the past twelve months that subsequently defaulted during the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2018. There were no loans modified during the preceding twelve months that subsequently defaulted during the three month period ended September 30, 2017. There was one residential real estate loan modified during the preceding twelve months with a recorded investment of \$205,000, which subsequently defaulted during the nine month period ended September 30, 2017.

All TDR loans are considered impaired and therefore are subject to a specific review for impairment. The impairment analysis appropriately discounts the present value of the anticipated cash flows by the loan's contractual rate of interest in effect prior to the loan's modification. The amount of impairment, if any, is recorded as a specific loss allocation to each individual loan in the allowance for loan losses. Commercial loans (commercial and industrial, commercial construction, commercial real estate and small business loans), residential loans, and home equity loans that have been classified as TDRs and which subsequently default are reviewed to determine if the loan should be deemed collateral dependent. In such an instance, any shortfall between the value of the collateral and the carrying value of the loan is determined by measuring the recorded investment in the loan against the fair value of the collateral less costs to sell. The Company charges off the amount of any confirmed loan loss in the period when the loans, or portion of loans, are deemed uncollectible. Smaller balance consumer TDR loans are reviewed for performance to determine when a charge-off is appropriate.

Impaired Loans

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

The tables below set forth information regarding the Company's impaired loans by loan portfolio at the dates indicated: September 30, 2018

	September	30, 2018	
	Recorded Investment	Unpaid Principal Balance	Related Allowance
	(Dollars in t		
With no related allowance recorded			
Commercial and industrial	\$30,618	\$38,297	\$ —
Commercial real estate	11,329	11,962	_
Small business	445	523	_
Residential real estate	4,783	4,925	_
Home equity	4,973	5,181	_
Other consumer	60	61	_
Subtotal	52,208	60,949	_
With an allowance recorded			
Commercial and industrial	\$320	\$320	\$7
Commercial real estate	1,694	1,694	34
Small business	146	152	1
Residential real estate	8,042	8,921	874
Home equity	1,437	1,620	168
Other consumer	184	187	13
Subtotal	11,823	12,894	1,097
Total		\$73,843	\$1,097
		1 2015	
	December 3		
	Recorded Investment	Unpaid Principal	Related Allowance
	Recorded	Unpaid Principal Balance	
With no related allowance recorded	Recorded Investment	Unpaid Principal Balance	
With no related allowance recorded Commercial and industrial	Recorded Investment (Dollars in t	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate	Recorded Investment (Dollars in tax \$34,267 13,245	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374	Allowance
Commercial and industrial	Recorded Investment (Dollars in t	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate	Recorded Investment (Dollars in tax \$34,267 13,245	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate	Recorded Investment (Dollars in t \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92	Allowance
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867	\$ —
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373 \$376 3,393 147	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867 \$376 3,399 153	\$
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373 \$376 3,393 147 9,420	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867 \$376 3,399 153 10,154	\$
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373 \$376 3,393 147 9,420 1,876	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867 \$376 3,399 153 10,154 2,110	\$
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373 \$376 3,393 147 9,420 1,876 216	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867 \$376 3,399 153 10,154 2,110 217	\$
Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity Other consumer Subtotal With an allowance recorded Commercial and industrial Commercial real estate Small business Residential real estate Home equity	Recorded Investment (Dollars in to \$34,267 13,245 556 4,264 4,950 91 57,373 \$376 3,393 147 9,420 1,876	Unpaid Principal Balance housands) \$38,329 14,374 619 4,397 5,056 92 62,867 \$376 3,399 153 10,154 2,110 217 16,409	\$

Table of Contents

The following tables set forth information regarding interest income recognized on impaired loans, by portfolio, for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended		
	September 30, 2018		September	30, 2018	
	Average Interest		Average	Interest	
	Recorded Investment	Income Recognized	Recorded Investment	Income Recognized	
	(Dollars in t	_		rice og mileu	
With no related allowance recorded					
Commercial and industrial	\$31,376	\$ 28	\$32,424	\$ 89	
Commercial real estate	12,040	135	12,423	428	
Small business	432	4	478	13	
Residential real estate	4,798	56	4,826	173	
Home equity	5,078	58	5,185	168	
Other consumer	62	1	66	3	
Subtotal	53,786	282	55,402	874	
With an allowance recorded					
Commercial and industrial	\$324	\$ 4	\$330	\$ 11	
Commercial real estate	1,701	24	1,715	71	
Small business	148	3	154	8	
Residential real estate	8,057	69	8,194	207	
Home equity	1,453	14	1,467	39	
Other consumer	187	1	194	4	
Subtotal	11,870	115	12,054	340	
Total	\$65,656	\$ 397	\$67,456	\$ 1,214	

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended		
	September 30, 2017		September	30, 2017	
	Average	Interest	Average	Interest	
	Recorded Investment	Income Recognized	Recorded Investment	Income Recognized	
	(Dollars in t	_			
With no related allowance recorded					
Commercial and industrial	\$33,935	\$ 18	\$36,329	\$ 179	
Commercial real estate	14,569	151	14,798	460	
Small business	682	5	702	17	
Residential real estate	3,928	51	3,962	152	
Home equity	4,883	50	4,935	146	
Other consumer	99	2	104	5	
Subtotal	58,096	277	60,830	959	
With an allowance recorded					
Commercial and industrial	\$1,698	\$ 21	\$1,768	\$ 65	
Commercial real estate	4,569	65	4,599	195	
Small business	305	3	315	11	
Residential real estate	9,752	79	9,838	234	
Home equity	1,765	14	1,782	41	
Other consumer	229	2	237	5	
Subtotal	18,318	184	18,539	551	
Total	\$76,414	\$ 461	\$79,369	\$ 1,510	

Purchased Credit Impaired Loans

Certain loans acquired by the Company may have shown evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination and it was therefore deemed unlikely that the Company would be able to collect all contractually required payments. As such, these loans were deemed to be PCI loans and the carrying value and prospective income recognition are predicated upon future cash flows expected to be collected. The following table displays certain information pertaining to PCI loans at the dates indicated:

September 3December 31, 2018 2017
(Dollars in thousands)
Outstanding balance \$10,725 \$14,485

Carrying amount \$9,668 \$13,023

The following table summarizes activity in the accretable yield for the PCI loan portfolio:

	Three Months Ended September 30		Nine Mont September	
	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollars in	thousands)		
Beginning balance	\$1,604	\$2,185	\$1,791	\$2,370
Accretion	(518	(359)	(931)	(968)
Other change in expected cash flows (1)	104	167	308	573
Reclassification from nonaccretable difference for loans which have paid off (2)	203	70	225	88
Ending balance	\$1,393	\$2,063	\$1,393	\$2,063

- (1) Represents changes in cash flows expected to be collected and resulting in increased interest income as a prospective yield adjustment over the remaining life of the loan(s).
- (2) Results in increased interest income during the period in which the loan paid off at amount greater than originally expected.

NOTE 5 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share consisted of the following components for the periods indicated:

Three M	Ionths Ended	Nine Months Ended					
September 30		September 3	30				
2018	2017	2018	2017				
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)							
\$ 22 O	15 \$ 22 852	\$01.688	\$ 65 1				

Net income \$33,015 \$ 23,852 \$91,688 \$65,140

Weighted Average Shares

Basic shares 27,537,8427,436,792 27,517,21027,242,902 Effect of dilutive securities 63,499 76,307 62,596 78,043 Diluted shares 27,601,3427,513,099 27,579,80627,320,945

Net income per share

Basic EPS	\$1.20	\$ 0.87	\$3.33	\$ 2.39	
Effect of dilutive securities	_	_	(0.01)) (0.01)
Diluted EPS	\$1.20	\$ 0.87	\$3.32	\$ 2.38	

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 there were no options to purchase common stock or shares of performance-based restricted stock that were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive.

NOTE 6 - STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Time Vested Restricted Stock Awards

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company made the following awards of restricted stock:

Date	Shares Granted	Plan	Date Fair Value Per Share	Vesting Period
2/15/2018	39,950	2005 Employee Stock Plan	\$ 71.75	Ratably over 5 years from grant date
2/27/2018	1,150	2005 Employee Stock Plan	\$ 72.60	Ratably over 5 years from grant date
5/15/2018	530	2005 Employee Stock Plan	\$ 74.00	Ratably over 5 years from grant date
5/22/2018	6,000	2018 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan	\$ 76.58	Shares vested immediately

The fair value of the restricted stock awards is based upon the average of the high and low price at which the Company's common stock traded on the date of grant. The holders of restricted stock awards are entitled to receive dividends and to vote from and as of the date of grant.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

On February 15, 2018, the Company granted 16,300 performance-based restricted stock awards to certain executive level employees. These performance-based restricted stock awards were issued from the 2005 Employee Stock Plan and were determined to have a grant date fair value per share of \$71.75, determined by the average of the high and low price at which the Company's common stock traded on the date of grant. The number of shares to be vested will be contingent upon the Company's attainment of certain performance measures outlined in the award agreement and will be measured as of the end of the three year performance period, January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2020. The awards will vest upon the earlier of the date on which it is determined if the performance goal is achieved subsequent to the performance period or March 31, 2021. These awards are accounted for as equity awards due to the nature of these awards and the fact that these shares will not be settled in cash.

The holders of these awards are not entitled to receive dividends or vote until the shares are vested.

On February 27, 2018, the performance-based restricted stock awards that were awarded on February 12, 2015 vested at 100% of the maximum target shares awarded, or 16,427 shares.

Stock Options

The Company has made the following awards of nonqualified options to purchase shares of common stock during the nine months ended September 30, 2018:

mile months ended september 50, 2010.							
Nine Months							
Ended							
September 30,							
2018							
4/3/2018							
2010							
Non-Employee							
Director							
Stock Plan							
5,000							
21 months							
4/3/2028							
21.15 %							
5.5							

Expected dividend yield 1.94 %
Risk free interest rate 2.62 %
Fair value per option \$ 13.46

(1) Vesting period began on the grant date.

NOTE 7 - REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Company can raise additional liquidity by entering into repurchase agreements at its discretion. These repurchases are accounted for as a secured borrowing transaction for accounting purposes. Payments on such borrowings are interest only until the scheduled repurchase date. In a repurchase agreement the Company is subject to the risk that the purchaser may default at maturity and not return the securities underlying the agreements. In order to minimize this potential risk, the Company enters into repurchase agreements that stipulate that the securities underlying the agreement are not delivered to the customer and instead are held in segregated safekeeping accounts by the Company's safekeeping agents.

The table below sets forth information regarding the Company's repurchase agreements allocated by source of collateral at the dates indicated:

September 30	December 31,
2018	2017
(Dollars in the	ousands)
\$14,664	\$16,867
57,378	51,273
69,134	94,539
\$141,176	\$ 162,679
	2018 (Dollars in the \$14,664 57,378 69,134

⁽¹⁾ All customer repurchase agreements have an overnight and continuous maturity date.

For further information regarding the Company's repurchase agreements see Note 9 - Balance Sheet Offsetting.

NOTE 8 - DERIVATIVE AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company early adopted ASU 2017-12, *Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities* as of January 1, 2018 to incorporate the new standard's alignment of hedge accounting qualifications with the Company's interest rate risk management with respect to new hedges entered into during the first quarter of 2018. This new standard was adopted under a modified retrospective transition, resulting in no changes to the accounting for hedge positions entered in to prior to January 1, 2018.

The Company's derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount, timing, and duration of the Company's known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments principally to manage the Company's interest rate risk. Additionally, the Company enters into interest rate derivatives and foreign exchange contracts to accommodate the business requirements of its customers ("customer related positions"). The Company minimizes the market and liquidity risks of customer related positions by entering into similar offsetting positions with broker-dealers. Derivative instruments are carried at fair value in the Company's financial statements. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument is dependent upon whether or not it qualifies as a hedge for accounting purposes, and further, by the type of hedging relationship.

The Company does not enter into proprietary trading positions for any derivatives.

Interest Rate Positions

The Company may utilize various interest rate derivatives as hedging instruments against interest rate risk associated with the Company's borrowings and loan portfolios. An interest rate derivative is an agreement whereby one party agrees to pay a floating rate of interest on a notional principal amount in exchange for receiving a fixed rate of interest on the same notional amount, for a predetermined period of time, from a second party. The amounts relating to the notional principal amount are not actually exchanged.

Table of Contents

The following tables reflect the Company's derivative positions for the periods indicated below for interest rate derivatives which qualify as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes:

September 30, 2018

September .	30, 2010									
Notional Amount	Trade Date	Effective Date	Maturity Date	Receive (Variable) Index	Current Ra Received	te Pay Fixed Swap Rate	•		Fair Value	
(Dollars in the	housands)									
\$25,000	12/9/2008	12/10/2008	12/10/2018	3 Month LIBOR	2.33 %	2.94	%	\$(29)	
25,000	4/1/2016	1/17/2017	12/15/2021	3 Month LIBOR	2.33 %	1.36	%	1,260		
25,000	4/1/2016	1/17/2017	12/15/2021	3 Month LIBOR	2.33 %	1.36	%	1,251		
25,000	7/18/2017	8/15/2017	8/15/2022	3 Month LIBOR	2.31 %	1.88	%	1,041		
Notional Amount	Trade Date	Effective Date	Maturity Date	Pay (Variable) Index	Current Ra Paid	te Receive Fixed Swap Rate		Fair Value	e	
50,000	1/9/2018	1/16/2018	1/15/2023	1 Month LIBOR	2.16 %	2.24	%	\$(1,347)	
50,000	7/31/2018	8/15/2018	8/15/2023	1 Month LIBOR	2.16 %	2.82	%	(189)	
Notional Amount	Trade Date	Effective Date	Maturity Date	Pay (Variable) Index	Current Ra Paid	Receive Fixed Swap Rate Cap - Floor		Fair Value	e	
50,000	1/9/2018	1/16/2018	1/15/2022	1 Month LIBOR	2.16 %	2.75% - 1.80%		\$(516)	
50,000	7/31/2018	8/15/2018	8/15/2022	1 Month LIBOR	2.16 %	3.08% - 2.50%		(128)	
50,000	9/24/2018	10/15/2018	4/15/2023 (1	1 Month LIBOR	N/A	3.09% - 2.75%		32		
								\$1,375		
December 3	1. 2017									

Decembe	r 31, 2017						
Notional Amount	Trade Date	Effective Date	Maturity Date	Receive (Variable) Index	Current Rate Received	Pay Fixed Swap Rate	Fair Value
(Dollars in	n thousands)						
\$25,00	0 12/9/2008	12/10/2008	12/10/2018	3 Month LIBOR	1.54 %	2.94	6 \$(264)
25,000	4/1/2016	1/17/2017	12/15/2021	3 Month LIBOR	1.59 %	1.36	6 772
25,000	4/1/2016	1/17/2017	12/15/2021	3 Month LIBOR	1.59 %	1.36	6 763
25,000	7/18/2017	8/15/2017	8/15/2022	3 Month LIBOR	1.42 %	1.88	6 345
							\$1,616

In September 2018, the Company entered into a forward-starting interest rate collar with a notional amount of \$50.0 million, with the intention of hedging (1) against adverse fluctuations in interest rates by reducing its exposure to variability in cash flows relating to interest income on the Company's variable-rate loans.

The maximum length of time over which the Company is currently hedging its exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions related to the payment of variable interest on existing financial instruments is five years.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedging instruments, the effective portion of the gains or losses is reported as a component of other comprehensive income ("OCI"), and is subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. The Company expects approximately \$17,000 (pre-tax) to be reclassified to interest income and \$912,000 (pre-tax) to be reclassified as an offset to interest expense, from OCI related to the Company's cash flow hedges in the next twelve months. This reclassification is due to anticipated payments that will be made and/or received on the swaps based upon the forward curve as of September 30, 2018.

The Company recognized \$61,000 and \$183,000 of net amortization income that was an offset to interest expense related to previously terminated swaps for each of the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company had no fair value hedges as of September 30, 2018 or December 31, 2017.

Customer Related Positions

Loan level derivatives, primarily interest rate swaps, offered to commercial borrowers through the Company's loan level derivative program do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes. The Company believes that its exposure to commercial customer derivatives is limited because these contracts are simultaneously matched at inception with an offsetting dealer transaction. The commercial customer derivative program allows the Company to retain variable-rate commercial loans while allowing the customer to synthetically fix the loan rate by entering into a variable-to-fixed interest rate swap.

Foreign exchange contracts offered to commercial borrowers through the Company's derivative program do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes. The Company acts as a seller and buyer of foreign exchange contracts to accommodate its customers. To mitigate the market and liquidity risk associated with these derivatives, the Company enters into similar offsetting positions.

The following tables reflect the Company's customer related derivative positions for the periods indicated below for those derivatives not designated as hedging:

	Notional Amount Maturing									
		b Eressf than ci dyse(ar) c mber 30, 20 ars in thousar	2 years 18	Less than 3 years	Less than 4 years	Thereafter	Total	Fair Value		
Loan level swaps										
Receive fixed, pay variable	246	\$47,115	\$65,256	\$168,249	\$57,508	\$619,232	\$957,360	\$(22,233	;)	
Pay fixed, receive variable	231	\$47,115	\$65,256	\$168,249	\$57,508	\$619,232	\$957,360	\$22,219		
Foreign exchange contracts										
Buys foreign currency, sells U.S. currency	24	\$43,013	\$2,796	\$—	\$	\$—	\$45,809	\$(1,021)	
Buys U.S. currency, sells foreign currency	24	\$43,013	\$2,796	\$—	\$—	\$—	\$45,809	\$1,043		
		mber 31, 201 ars in thousar								
Loan level swaps										
Receive fixed, pay variable	246	\$36,023	\$61,500	\$152,287	\$111,147	\$591,385	\$952,342	\$3,875		
Pay fixed, receive variable	231	\$36,023	\$61,500	\$152,287	\$111,147	\$591,385	\$952,342	\$(3,880)	
Foreign exchange contracts										
Buys foreign currency, sells U.S. currency	15	\$26,382	\$3,780	\$—	\$—	\$—	\$30,162	\$1,202		
Buys U.S. currency, sells foreign currency	15	\$26,382	\$3,780	\$	\$	\$	\$30,162	\$(1,188)	

⁽¹⁾ The Company may enter into one dealer swap agreement which offsets multiple commercial borrower swap agreements.

Mortgage Derivatives

Prior to closing and funding certain 1- 4 family residential mortgage loans, an interest rate lock commitment is generally extended to the borrower. During the period from commitment date to closing date, the Company is subject to the risk that market rates of interest may change. If market rates rise, investors generally will pay less to purchase such loans resulting in a reduction in the gain on sale of the loans or, possibly, a loss. In an effort to mitigate such risk, forward delivery sales commitments are executed, under which the Company agrees to deliver whole mortgage loans to various investors. These forward commitments carry a market price that has a strong inverse relationship to that of mortgage prices. Certain assumptions, including pull through rates and rate lock periods, are used in managing the existing and future hedges. The accuracy of underlying assumptions will impact the ultimate effectiveness of any hedging strategies.

The change in fair value on the interest rate lock commitments and forward delivery sale commitments are recorded in current period earnings as a component of mortgage banking income. In addition, the Company has elected the fair value option

Table of Contents

to carry loans held for sale at fair value. The change in fair value of loans held for sale is recorded in current period earnings as a component of mortgage banking income in accordance with the Company's fair value election. The change in fair value associated with loans held for sale was an increase of \$103,000 and a decrease of \$108,000 for the three month periods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and an increase of \$147,000 and a decrease of \$102,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These amounts were offset in earnings by the change in the fair value of mortgage derivatives. Additionally, the aggregate amount of net realized gains or losses on sales of such loans included within mortgage banking income was \$1.1 million and \$1.4 million for the three month periods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively and \$2.6 million and \$3.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Table of Contents

The table below presents the fair value of the Company's derivative financial instruments, as well as their classification on the balance sheet at the periods indicated:

	Asset Derivatives Lia		Liability Derivatives			
	Balance Sheet Location (Dollars in thousa	at September 30 2018	Fair Value at December 31 2017	Balance Sheet Location	Fair Value at September 30 2018	Fair Value at December 31 2017
Derivatives designated as hedges						
Interest rate derivatives	Other assets	\$3,584	\$1,880	Other liabilities	\$2,209	\$264
Derivatives not designated as hedges						
Customer Related Positions						
Loan level derivatives	Other assets	\$25,041	\$14,236	Other liabilities	\$25,055	\$14,241
Foreign exchange contracts	Other assets	1,143	1,202	Other liabilities	1,121	1,188
Mortgage Derivatives						
Interest rate lock commitments	Other assets	233	149	Other liabilities	_	_
Forward sales agreements	Other assets	_	9	Other liabilities	61	_
		\$26,417	\$15,596		\$26,237	\$15,429
Total		\$30,001	\$17,476		\$28,446	\$15,693

The table below presents the effect of the Company's derivative financial instruments included in OCI and current earnings for the periods indicated:

	Three Mo Ended	nths	Nine Mon	ths Ended
	Septembe	r 30	Septembe	r 30
	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollars in	thousand	s)	
Derivatives designated as hedges				
Gain (loss) in OCI on derivatives (effective portion), net of tax	\$(405)	\$109	\$(302)	\$8
Gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into interest income or interest expense (effective portion)	\$268	\$(91)	\$525	\$(264)
Loss recognized in income on derivatives (ineffective portion and amount excluded				
from effectiveness testing)				
Interest expense	\$ —	\$	\$—	\$ —
Other expense	\$— — \$—	_	_	_
Total	\$ —	\$	\$—	\$ —
Derivatives not designated as hedges				
Changes in fair value of customer related positions				
Other income	\$3	\$7	\$27	\$7
Other expense	(10)	(7)	(28)	(17)
Changes in fair value of mortgage derivatives				
Mortgage banking income	(139)	(33)	14	71
Total	\$(146)	\$(33)	\$13	\$61

The Company's derivative agreements with institutional counterparties contain various credit-risk related contingent provisions, such as requiring the Company to maintain a well-capitalized capital position. If the Company fails to meet these conditions, the counterparties could request the Company make immediate payment or demand that the Company provide immediate and ongoing full collateralization on derivative positions in net liability positions. The

aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent features that were in a net liability position was \$34,000 and \$4.2 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. Although none of the contingency provisions have applied as of

September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company has posted collateral to offset the net liability exposures with institutional counterparties.

By using derivatives, the Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent that counterparties to the derivative contracts do not perform as required. Should a counterparty fail to perform under the terms of a derivative contract, the Company's credit exposure on interest rate swaps is limited to the net positive fair value and accrued interest of all swaps with each counterparty. The Company seeks to minimize counterparty credit risk through credit approvals, limits, monitoring procedures, and obtaining collateral, where appropriate. Institutional counterparties must have an investment grade credit rating and be approved by the Company's Board of Directors. As such, management believes the risk of incurring credit losses on derivative contracts with institutional counterparties is remote. The Company's exposure relating to institutional counterparties was \$27.3 million and \$7.1 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The Company's exposure relating to customer counterparties was approximately \$1.5 million and \$9.5 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. Credit exposure may be reduced by the value of collateral pledged by the counterparty.

NOTE 9 - BALANCE SHEET OFFSETTING

The Company does not offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments or repurchase agreements. The Company does net the amount recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral against the obligation to return cash collateral arising from derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under a master netting arrangement. Collateral legally required to be maintained at dealer banks by the Company is monitored and adjusted as necessary.

The following tables present the Company's asset and liability derivative positions and the potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position, as of the periods indicated:

·		•		Offset in	mounts Not the Statemer cial Position	nt
	Recognize in the Statement of	of Financial Position	in the Statement of	Instrum	alCollateral e M edged (Received)	Net Amount
	(Dollars in	thousands)				
Derivative Assets						
Interest rate swaps	\$3,584	\$ -	\$3,584	\$2,189	9\$(1,133)\$262
Loan level derivatives	25,041		25,041	1,409	(12,605)11,027
Customer foreign exchange contracts	1,143	_	1,143	_	_	1,143
c c	\$29,768				3\$(13,738	
Derivative Liabilities						
Interest rate swaps	\$2,209	\$ -	\$2,209	\$2,189	9\$20	\$ —
Loan level derivatives			25,055			23,644
Customer foreign exchange contracts		_		_		1,121
	\$28,385		\$28,385	\$3,598	3\$22	\$24,765
Customer repurchase agreements (1) Reflects offsetting derivative positions with the	141,176		141,176	_	141,176	_

	Gross	Gross	Net	Offset in Statemen		
	Amounts Recognized in the Statement of	Amounts dOffset in the Statement of Financial Position		Instrume	lCollateral e Ple dged (Received)	Net Amount
D. C. A. A.	(Dollars in	thousands)				
Derivative Assets	4.000	.			.	4.05
Interest rate swaps	\$1,880		\$1,880			\$1,075
Loan level derivatives			14,236			9,658
Customer foreign exchange contracts	1,202	—	1,202	—	_	1,202
	\$17,318	-	\$17,318	\$5,383	\$\$ —	\$11,935
Derivative Liabilities						
Interest rate swaps	\$264	\$	\$ 264	\$ —	\$ 264	\$ —
Loan level derivatives	14,241	_	14,241	5,383	3,675	5,183
Customer foreign exchange contracts	1,188		1,188		_	1,188
	\$15,693	\$	\$ 15,693	\$5,383	\$ 3,939	\$6,371
Customer repurchase agreements	162,679	_	162,679	_	162,679	_

⁽¹⁾ Reflects offsetting derivative positions with the same counterparty.

NOTE 10 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market assumptions are not readily available, the assumptions applied by the Company when determining fair value reflect those that the Company determines market participants would use to price the asset or liability at the measurement date. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, regardless of the valuation technique(s) used, the objective of a fair value measurement remains the same. Fair value is the price that would be received if the asset were to be sold or that would be or paid if the liability were to be transferred in an orderly market transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions. When determining fair value, the Company considers pricing information and other inputs that are current as of the measurement date. In periods of market dislocation, the observability of prices and other inputs may be reduced for certain instruments, or not available at all. The unavailability or reduced availability of pricing or other input information could cause an instrument to be reclassified from one level to another.

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC defines fair value and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC are described below:

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 – Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 – Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.

To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining

fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Valuation Techniques

There have been no changes in the valuation techniques used during the current period.

Securities

Trading and Equity Securities

These equity securities are valued based on market quoted prices. These securities are categorized in Level 1 as they are actively traded and no valuation adjustments have been applied.

U.S. Government Agency Securities

Fair value is estimated using either multi-dimensional spread tables or benchmarks. The inputs used include benchmark yields, reported trades, and broker/dealer quotes. These securities are classified as Level 2.

Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities

Fair value is estimated using either a matrix or benchmarks. The inputs used include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, and issuer spreads. These securities are categorized as Level 2.

Agency Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Small Business Administration Pooled Securities

The valuation model for these securities is volatility-driven and ratings based, and uses multi-dimensional spread tables. The inputs used include benchmark yields, reported trades, new issue data, broker dealer quotes, and collateral performance. If there is at least one significant model assumption or input that is not observable, these securities are categorized as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy; otherwise, they are classified as Level 2.

State, County, and Municipal Securities

The fair value is estimated using a valuation matrix with inputs including bond interest rate tables, recent transactions, and yield relationships. These securities are categorized as Level 2.

Single and Pooled Issuer Trust Preferred Securities

The fair value of trust preferred securities, including pooled and single issuer preferred securities, is estimated using external pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques. The inputs used in these valuations include benchmark yields, reported trades, new issue data, broker dealer quotes, and collateral performance. If there is at least one significant model assumption or input that is not observable, these securities are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy; otherwise, they are classified as Level 2.

Loans Held for Sale

The Company has elected the fair value option to account for originated closed loans intended for sale. The fair value is measured on an individual loan basis using quoted market prices and when not available, comparable market value or discounted cash flow analysis may be utilized. These assets are typically classified as Level 2.

Derivative Instruments

Derivatives

The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves and implied volatilities. The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk, the Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral postings. Additionally, in conjunction with fair value measurement guidance, the Company has made an accounting policy election to measure the credit risk of its derivative financial instruments that are subject to master netting agreements on a net basis by counterparty portfolio. Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its interest rate derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its interest rate derivatives may also utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by the Company and its counterparties. However, as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the

Table of Contents

overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in their entirety are properly classified as Level 2.

Mortgage Derivatives

The fair value of mortgage derivatives is determined based on current market prices for similar assets in the secondary market and, therefore, classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy.

Impaired Loans

Collateral dependent loans that are deemed to be impaired are valued based upon the lower of cost or fair value of the underlying collateral less costs to sell. The inputs used in the appraisals of the collateral are not always observable, and in such cases the loans may be classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy; otherwise, they are classified as Level 2.

Other Real Estate Owned and Other Foreclosed Assets

Other Real Estate Owned ("OREO") and Other Foreclosed Assets are valued at the lower of cost or fair value of the property, less estimated costs to sell. The fair values are generally estimated based upon recent appraisal values of the property less costs to sell the property. Certain inputs used in appraisals are not always observable, and therefore OREO and Other Foreclosed Assets may be classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are subject to impairment testing. The Company conducts an annual impairment test of goodwill in the third quarter of each year, or more frequently if necessary. Other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. To estimate the fair value of goodwill and, if necessary, other intangible assets, the Company utilizes both a comparable analysis of relevant price multiples in recent market transactions and discounted cash flow analysis. Both valuation models require a significant degree of management judgment. In the event the fair value as determined by the valuation model is less than the carrying value, the intangibles may be impaired. If the impairment testing resulted in impairment, the Company would classify the impaired goodwill and other intangible assets subjected to nonrecurring fair value adjustments as Level 3.

Table of Contents

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis were as follows as of the dates indicated:

		Fair Value Date Using		s at Reporting
		Quoted Pri		
	Balance	in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
	September 3 (Dollars in the			
Recurring fair value measurements	(Donars III til	ousanus)		
Assets				
Trading securities	\$1,581	\$1,581	\$ —	\$ <i>—</i>
Equity securities	20,430	20,430	_	_
Securities available for sale				
U.S. Government agency securities	31,572	_	31,572	_
Agency mortgage-backed securities	207,523		207,523	_
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	137,645	_	137,645	_
State, county, and municipal securities	1,981	_	1,981	_
Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	1,004	_	1,004	_
Pooled trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	1,800	_	_	1,800
Small business administration pooled securities	54,336	_	54,336	_
Loans held for sale	10,431	_	10,431	_
Derivative instruments	30,001	—	30,001	_
Liabilities				
Derivative instruments	28,446	_	28,446	_
Total recurring fair value measurements	\$469,858	\$22,011	\$446,047	\$ 1,800
Nonrecurring fair value measurements Assets				
Collateral dependent impaired loans	\$32,009	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 32,009
Other real estate owned and other foreclosed assets	190	_	_	190
Total nonrecurring fair value measurements	\$32,199	\$—	\$—	\$ 32,199

Table of Contents

	Balance December 31 (Dollars in the	Date Using Quoted Pri in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)		Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Recurring fair value measurements Assets				
Trading securities	\$1,324	\$1,324	•	•
Equity securities	20,584	20,584	ψ— —	φ— —
Securities available for sale	20,304	20,304		
U.S. Government agency securities	35,430	_	35,430	_
Agency mortgage-backed securities	215,764	_	215,764	_
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	122,012		122,012	_
State, county, and municipal securities	2,274	_	2,274	_
Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	2,016	_	2,016	_
Pooled trust preferred securities issued by banks and insurers	1,640	_	_	1,640
Small business administration pooled securities	47,778	_	47,778	_
Loans held for sale	4,768	_	4,768	_
Derivative instruments	17,476	_	17,476	_
Liabilities				
Derivative instruments	15,693	_	15,693	_
Total recurring fair value measurements	\$455,373	\$21,908	\$431,825	\$ 1,640
Nonrecurring fair value measurements: Assets				
Collateral dependent impaired loans	\$33,567	\$	\$	\$ 33,567
Other real estate owned and other foreclosed assets	612	_	_	612
Total nonrecurring fair value measurements	\$34,179	\$	\$—	\$ 34,179

The table below presents a reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), which were valued using pricing models and discounted cash flow methodologies, as of the dates indicated:

<i>C</i> ,		
	Three Mon	ths Ended
	September	30
	2018	2017
	(Dollars in t	housands)
Pooled Trust Preferred Securities		
Beginning balance	\$1,751	\$1,593
Gains and (losses) (realized/unrealized)		
Included in other comprehensive income	55	51
Settlements	(6)	(20)
Ending balance	\$1,800	\$1,624
	Nine Montl	ns Ended
	September	30
	2018	2017
	(Dollars in t	housands)
Pooled Trust Preferred Securities		
Beginning balance	\$1,640	\$1,584
Gains and (losses) (realized/unrealized)		
Included in other comprehensive income	180	58
Settlements	(20)	(18)
Ending balance	\$1,800	\$1,624

It is the Company's policy to recognize the transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy for any assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the nine month periods ended September 30, 2018 or 2017.

Table of Contents

The following table sets forth certain unobservable inputs regarding the Company's investment in securities that are classified as Level 3 for the periods indicated:

elassified as Devel's for the perio	September 30 2018			September 30 2018	December 31 2017	September 30 2018	December 31 2017
Valuation Technique	Fair Value		Unobservable Inputs	Range		Weighted Av	erage
	(Dollars in t	housands)					
Discounted cash flow methodolog	gy						
Pooled trust preferred securities	\$1,800	\$1,640	Cumulative prepayment	0% - 59%	0% - 61%	2.4%	2.5%
			Cumulative default	5% - 100%	5% - 100%	13.5%	12.4%
			Loss given default	85% - 100%	85% - 100%	94.4%	94.3%
			Cure given default	0% - 75%	0% - 75%	60.9%	60.9%
Appraisals of collateral(1)							
Collateral dependent impaired loans	\$32,009	\$33,567					
Other real estate owned and foreclosed assets	\$190	\$612					

Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which generally include various Level 3 inputs which are not (1) identifiable. Appraisals may be adjusted by management for qualitative factors such as economic factors and estimated liquidation expenses. The range of these possible adjustments may vary.

For the fair value measurements in the table above, which are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy, the Company's Treasury and Finance groups determine the valuation policies and procedures. For the pricing of the securities, the Company uses third-party pricing information, without adjustment. Depending on the type of the security, management employs various techniques to analyze the pricing it receives from third parties, such as analyzing changes in market yields and in certain instances reviewing the underlying collateral of the security. Management reviews changes in fair value from period to period and performs testing to ensure that prices received from the third parties are consistent with their expectation of the market. For the securities whose market is deemed to be inactive and which are categorized as Level 3, the fair value models are calibrated and significant inputs are back tested on a quarterly basis, to the extent possible. This testing is done by the third party service provider, who performs this testing by comparing anticipated inputs to actual results. Significant changes in fair value from period to period are closely scrutinized to ensure fair value models are not flawed. The driver(s) of the respective change in fair value and the method for forecasting the driver(s) are closely considered by management.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company's pooled trust preferred securities are cumulative prepayment rates, cumulative default rates, loss given default rates and cure given default rates. Significant increases (decreases) in deferrals or defaults, in isolation, would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement. Alternatively, significant increases (decreases) in cure rates, in isolation, would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement.

Additionally, the Company has certain assets which are marked to fair value on a nonrecurring basis which are categorized within Level 3. These assets include collateral dependent impaired loans and OREO. The determination of the fair value amount is derived from the use of independent third party appraisals and evaluations. Real estate appraisals are prepared by firms from a predetermined list of qualified and approved appraisers or evaluators. Upon receipt of a real estate appraisal or evaluation, the Company's Commercial Real Estate Appraisal Department will review the report for compliance with regulatory and Company standards, as well as reasonableness and acceptance of the value conclusions. Any issues or concerns regarding compliance or value conclusions will be addressed with the engaged firm and the report may be adjusted or revised. If a disagreement cannot be resolved, the Company will either address the key issues and modify the report for acceptance or reject the report and re-order a new report. Ultimately, the Company will confirm the collateral value as part of its review process.

Table of Contents

The estimated fair values and related carrying amounts for assets and liabilities for which fair value is only disclosed are shown below as of the periods indicated:

			Fair Value Measurements at Reporting	ng Date Using
	Carrying Value	Fair Value	Quoted Prices in ActiSignificant MarkeOtfur Identi@bservable Assets Inputs (Level (Level 2) 1)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
	September 30,	2018		
	(Dollars in thou	sands)		
Financial assets				
Securities held to maturity(a)				
U.S. Treasury securities	\$1,004	\$1,006	\$ —\$ 1,006	\$ —
Agency mortgage-backed securities	189,479	184,088	— 184,088	_
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	336,346	323,516	— 323,516	_
Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks	1,500	1,490	— 1,490	_
Small business administration pooled securities	25,376	24,522	— 24,522	_
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses(b)	6,432,158	6,229,090		6,229,090
Federal Home Loan Bank stock(c)	13,107	13,107	— 13,107	_
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies(d)	153,186	153,186	— 153,186	_
Financial liabilities				
Deposit liabilities, other than time deposits(e)	\$6,312,788	\$6,312,788	\$ -\$ 6,312,788	\$ —
Time certificates of deposits(f)	663,451	654,685	— 654,685	_
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings(f)	50,767	49,974	— 49,974	_
Customer repurchase agreements and other short-term	1/1 176	141 176		141 176
borrowings(f)	141,176	141,176		141,176
Junior subordinated debentures(g)	73,078	70,720	— 70,720	_
Subordinated debentures(f)	34,717	31,360		31,360

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Table of Contents

			Fair	Value Measurements at Reporti	ng Date	Using
	Carrying Value	Fair Value	in Ac Marl Ident Asset	ed Prices tiSignificant ceAthur it@bservable is Inputs el (Level 2)	Signific Unobse Inputs (Level	ervable
	December 31, 2	2017				
	(Dollars in thou	sands)				
Financial assets						
Securities held to maturity(a)						
U.S. Treasury securities	\$1,006	\$1,035	\$ -	\$ 1,035	\$	_
Agency mortgage-backed securities	204,768	205,823	_	205,823	_	
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations	262,998	258,408	_	258,408	_	
Single issuer trust preferred securities issued by banks	1,500	1,529	_	1,529	_	
Small business administration pooled securities	27,416	27,399	—	27,399	—	
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses(b)	6,261,343	6,116,051	—	_	6,116	,051
Federal Home Loan Bank stock(c)	11,597	11,597	—	11,597	_	
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies(d)	151,528	151,528	—	151,528	_	
Financial liabilities						
Deposit liabilities, other than time deposits(e)	\$6,084,952	\$6,084,952	\$ -	\$ 6,084,952	\$	_
Time certificates of deposits(f)	644,301	639,060	—	639,060	_	
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings(f)	53,264	52,111	—	52,111	_	
Customer repurchase agreements and other short-term	162,679	162,679		_	162,6	79
borrowings(f)	102,077	102,077			102,0	,,,
Junior subordinated debentures(g)	73,073	74,680	—	74,680	_	
Subordinated debentures(f)	34,682	32,707	_	_	32,70	7

⁽a) The fair values presented are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments and/or discounted cash flow analysis.

In accordance with recent accounting guidance, the fair value of loans as of September 30, 2018 was measured using the exit price valuation method, determined primarily by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings

This summary excludes certain financial assets and liabilities for which the carrying value approximates fair value. For financial assets, these may include cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and short-term investments. For financial liabilities, these may include federal funds purchased. These instruments would all be considered to be classified as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. Also excluded from the summary are financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis, as previously described.

The Company considers its current use of financial instruments to be the highest and best use of the instruments.

and for the same remaining maturities or cash flows, while incorporating liquidity and credit assumptions. Previously the fair value of loans as of December 31, 2017 was estimated solely by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities or cash flows. Additionally, this amount excludes collateral dependent impaired loans, which are deemed to be marked to fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

⁽c) FHLB stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost, therefore the carrying amount approximates fair value.

Cash surrender value of life insurance is recorded at its cash surrender value (or the amount that can be realized upon surrender of the policy), therefore carrying amount approximates fair value.

⁽e) Fair value of demand deposits, savings and interest checking accounts and money market deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.

⁽f) Fair value was determined by discounting anticipated future cash payments using rates currently available for instruments with similar remaining maturities. (g) Fair value was determined based upon market prices of securities with similar terms and maturities.

NOTE 11 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company adopted the new revenue recognition standard under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606 ("ASC 606") as of January 1, 2018 and is using the modified retrospective transition method upon adoption. The Company determined that there were no material changes to be made to revenue recognition upon adoption and that there were no practical expedients to apply to its contracts.

A portion of the Company's noninterest income is derived from contracts with customers, and as such, the revenue recognized depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company considers the terms of the contract and all relevant facts and circumstances when applying this guidance. To ensure its alignment with this core principle, the Company measures revenue and the timing of recognition by applying the following five steps:

- 1. Identify the contract(s) with customers
- 2. Identify the performance obligations
- 3. Determine the transaction price
- 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
- 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

The Company has disaggregated its revenue from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following table presents the revenue streams that the Company has disaggregated as of the periods indicated:

Three Months

	Ended	ontils .	Nine Montl	is Ended	
	•	erSeptember	•	•	
	30, 2018		30, 2018	30, 2017	
	(Dollars	in thousand	s)		
Deposit account fees (inclusive of cash management fees)	\$4,658	\$4,401	\$13,640	\$13,337	
Interchange fees	3,943	3,597	11,267	10,279	
ATM fees	825	815	2,215	2,261	
Investment management - wealth management and advisory services	5,912	5,402	17,577	16,027	
Investment management - retail investments and insurance revenue	652	565	1,951	1,549	
Merchant processing income	227	337	1,006	904	
Other noninterest income	1,152	1,188	3,186	3,269	
Total noninterest income in-scope of ASC 606	17,369	16,305	50,842	47,626	
Total noninterest income out-of-scope of ASC 606	5,895	4,465	14,172	13,454	
Total noninterest income	23,264	20,770	65,014	61,080	

In each of the revenue streams identified above, there were no significant judgments made in determining or allocating the transaction price, as the consideration and service requirements are generally explicitly identified in the associated contracts. Additional information related to each of the revenue streams is further noted below:

Deposit Account Fees

The Company offers various deposit account products to its customers governed by specific deposit agreements applicable to either personal customers or business customers. These agreements identify the general conditions and obligations of both parties, and include standard information regarding deposit account related fees.

Deposit account services include providing access to deposit accounts as well as access to the various deposit transactional services of the Company. These transactional services are primarily those that are identified in the

standard fee schedule, and include, but are not limited to, services such as overdraft protection, wire transfer, and check collection. Revenue is recognized in conjunction with the various services being provided. For example, the Company may assess monthly fixed service fees associated with the customer having access to the deposit account, which can vary depending on the account type and daily account balance. In addition, the Company may also assess separate fixed fees associated with and at the time specific transactions are entered into by the customer. As such, the Company considers its performance obligations to be met concurrently with providing the account access or completing the requested deposit transaction.

Table of Contents

Cash Management

Cash management services are a subset of the Deposit account fees revenue stream. These services primarily include ACH transaction processing, positive pay and remote deposit services. These services are also governed by separate agreements entered into with the customer. The fee arrangement for these services is structured to assess fees under one of two scenarios, either a per transaction fee arrangement or an earnings credit analysis arrangement. Under the per transaction fee arrangement, fixed fees are assessed concurrently with customers executing the transactions, and as such, the Company considers its performance obligations to be met concurrently with completing the requested transaction. Under the earnings credit analysis arrangement, the Company provides a monthly earnings credit to the customer that is negotiated and determined based on various factors. The credit is then available to absorb the per transaction fees that are assessed on the customer's deposit account activity for the month. Any amount of the transactional fees in excess of the earnings credit is recognized as revenue in that month.

Interchange Fees

The Company earns interchange revenue from its issuance of credit and debit cards granted through its membership in various card payment networks. The Company provides credit cards and debit cards to its customers which are authorized and settled through these payment networks, and in exchange, the Company earns revenue as determined by each payment network's interchange program. The revenue is recognized concurrently with the settlement of card transactions within each network.

ATM Fees

The Company deploys automated teller machines (ATMs) as part of its overall branch network. Certain transactions performed at the ATMs require customers to acknowledge and pay a fee for the requested service. Certain ATM fees are disclosed in the deposit account agreement fee schedules, whereas those assessed to non-Rockland Trust deposit holders are solely determined during the transaction at the machine.

The ATM fee is a fixed dollar per transaction amount, and as such, is recognized concurrently with the overall daily processing and settlement of the ATM activity.

Investment Management - Wealth Management and Advisory Services

The Company offers investment management and trust services to individuals, institutions, small businesses and charitable institutions. Each investment management product is governed by its own contract along with a separate identifiable fee schedule unique to that product. The Company also offers additional services, such as estate settlement, financial planning, tax services and other special services quoted at the client's request.

The asset management and/or custody fees are based upon a percentage of the monthly valuation of the principal assets in the customer's account, whereas fees for additional or special services are fixed in nature and are charged as services are rendered. As the fees are dependent on assets under management, which are susceptible to market factors outside of the Company's control, this variable consideration is constrained and therefore no revenue is estimated at contract initiation. As such, all revenue is recognized in correlation to the monthly management fee determinations or as transactional services are provided. Due to the fact that payments are primarily made subsequent to the valuation period, the Company records a receivable for revenue earned but not received. The following table provides the amount of investment management revenue earned but not received as of the periods indicated:

September December 31, 2018 2017 (Dollars in thousands)

Receivables, included in other assets \$1,892 \$ 1,934

Investment Management - Retail Investments and Insurance Revenue

The Company offers the sale of mutual fund shares, unit investment trust shares, general securities, fixed and variable annuities and life insurance products through registered representatives who are both employed by the Company and licensed and contracted with various Broker General Agents to offer these products to the Company's customer base. As such, the Company performs these services as an agent and earns a fixed commission on the sales of these products and services. To a lesser degree, production bonus commissions can also be earned based upon the Company meeting certain volume thresholds.

Table of Contents

In general, the Company recognizes commission revenue at the point of sale, and for certain insurance products, may also earn and recognize annual residual commissions commensurate with annual premiums being paid.

Merchant Processing Income

The Company refers customers to third party merchant processing partners in exchange for commission and fee income. The income earned is comprised of multiple components, including a fixed referral fee per each referred customer, a rebate amount determined primarily as a percentage of net revenue earned by the third party from services provided to each referred customer, and overall production bonus commissions if certain new account production thresholds are met. Merchant processing income is recognized in conjunction with either completing the referral to earn the fixed fee amount or as the merchant activity is processed to derive the Company's rebate and/or production bonus amounts.

Other Noninterest Income

The Company earns various types of other noninterest income that fall within the scope of the new revenue recognition rules, and have been aggregated into one general revenue stream in the table noted above. This amount includes, but is not limited to, the following types of revenue with customers:

Safe Deposit Rent

The Company rents out the use of safe deposit boxes to its customers, which can be accessed when the bank is open for business. The safe deposit box rental fee is paid upfront and is recognized as revenue ratably over the annual term of the contract.

1031 Exchange Fee Revenue

The Company provides like-kind exchange services pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code. Fee income is recognized in conjunction with completing the exchange transactions.

Foreign Currency

The Company earns fee income associated with various transactions related to foreign currency product offerings, including foreign currency bank notes and drafts and foreign currency wires. The majority of this income is derived from commissions earned related to customers executing the above mentioned foreign currency transactions through arrangements with third party correspondents.

NOTE 12 - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables present a reconciliation of the changes in the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the dates indicated, including the amount of income tax (expense) benefit allocated to each component of other comprehensive income (loss):

comprehensive meome (1033).	Three Mont September 3 Pre Tax Amount (Dollars in th	30, 2 Ta Be	018 x (Exp nefit	ens	e) After ' Amou		x 1), 2 T	018	se)	After Tax Amount	ζ.
Change in fair value of securities available for sale	\$(2,988)	\$	726		\$(2,2	262	2):	\$(12	2,761	\$	3,107		\$(9,654	4)
Less: net security gains reclassified into other noninterest income (expense)	_	_	-		_		-	_		-	_		_	
Net change in fair value of securities available for sale	(2,988)	72	26		(2,26	52) ((12,	761) 3	3,107		(9,654)
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges	(296)	83	3		(213)	100		(25)	75	
Less: net cash flow hedge gains reclassified into interest income or interest expense (1)	268	(7	6)	192			525		(148	Refit Amount Refit Refi		
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges	(564)	15	59		(405) ((425	5) 1	123		(302)
Amortization of net actuarial losses	94	(2	6)	68		ź	281		(79)	202	
Amortization of net prior service costs	69	(2	0)	49			207		(58)	149	
Net change in other comprehensive income for defined benefit postretirement plans (2)	163	(4	6)	117		4	488		(137)	351	
Total other comprehensive loss	\$(3,389)	\$	Three		\$(2,5 onths En er 30, 20	de		\$(12	Nine M	Ion	3,093 oths Ended or 30, 2017		\$(9,60	5)
			Pre Ta	nt	Tax (Expens Benefit	e)	Afte Tax Am		Pre Ta		Tax (Expens Benefit	e)		
Change in fair value of accomitics available for sale			`		n thousar			05	ΦΩ 5 0	1 0	¢ (1 00	11	φ1 5 1	2
Change in fair value of securities available for sale	terest incon	me	(Dolla \$347	7	\$(152			95	\$2,52	20	\$(1,00	1)	\$1,51	9
Change in fair value of securities available for sale Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense)	terest incon	ne	`	7)		95	\$2,52 13	20	\$(1,00°) (5			9
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint		ne	\$347	7	\$(152)	\$1					,) 8	9
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges	ıle		\$347 11	7	\$ (152 (4)	\$1°7		13	,	(5	,) 8) 1,511	9
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges Less: net cash flow hedge losses reclassified into into	ıle		\$347 11 336	1	\$ (152) (4) (148))	\$1 7 183	3	13 2,507 (250	7	(5 (996	,) 8) 1,511 (148	9
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges	ıle		\$347 11 336 91	"	\$ (152) (4) (148) (36))))	\$1°7 183 55	3	13 2,507 (250	7	(5 (996) 102) 8) 1,511 (148 (156)
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges Less: net cash flow hedge losses reclassified into into or interest expense (1) Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges Net unamortized loss related to defined benefit pensity	erest incom	ne	\$347 11 336 91 (91	"	\$(152) (4) (148) (36) 37) (73))))	\$1°7 183 55 (54	3 	13 2,507 (250 (264		(5 (996) 102) 108) 8) 1,511 (148 (156) 8)
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges Less: net cash flow hedge losses reclassified into into or interest expense (1) Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges Net unamortized loss related to defined benefit pensit postretirement adjustments arising during the period	erest incom	ne	\$347 11 336 91 (91 182)	\$(152) (4) (148) (36) 37) (73) 2))))	\$11 7 183 55 (54 109 (4	3 	13 2,507 (250 (264 14 (20		(5 (996) 102) 108 (6) 8) 8) 1,511 (148 (156) 8 (12)
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges Less: net cash flow hedge losses reclassified into into or interest expense (1) Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges Net unamortized loss related to defined benefit pensity	erest incom	ne	\$347 11 336 91 (91 182)	\$(152) (4) (148) (36) 37) (73))))))	\$1 7 188 55 (54 109	3 	13 2,507 (250 (264 14		(5 (996) 102) 108 (6) 8) 1,511 (148 (156) 8 (12) 123)
Less: net security gains reclassified into other nonint (expense) Net change in fair value of securities available for sa Change in fair value of cash flow hedges Less: net cash flow hedge losses reclassified into into or interest expense (1) Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges Net unamortized loss related to defined benefit pensity postretirement adjustments arising during the period Amortization of net actuarial losses	erest incom	ne	\$347 11 336 91 (91 182 (6 69)	\$(152) (4) (148) (36) 37) (73) 2) (28)))))	\$1 7 188 55 (54 109 (4 41	3 	13 2,507 (250 (264 14 (20 208		(5 (996) 102) 108 (6 (85) 8) 1,511 (148 (156) 8 (12) 123)

Table of Contents

Includes the amortization of the remaining balance of a realized but unrecognized gain, net of tax, from the termination of interest rate swaps in 2009. The (1) original gain of \$1.4 million, net of tax, is being recognized in earnings through December 2018, the original maturity date of the swap. The balance of this gain has amortized to \$34,000 and \$137,000 at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

The amortization of prior service costs is included in the computation of net periodic pension cost as disclosed in the Employee Benefit Plans footnote in the (2) Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company elected to reclassify certain tax effects from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings, related to items that were stranded in other comprehensive income as a result of the Tax Act. A description of the other income tax effects that were reclassified as a result of the Tax Act are listed in the table below.

Information on the Company's accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, is comprised of the following components as of the periods indicated:

Unrealized Gain on Securities	Gain (Loss) on Cash Flow Hedge	Deferred Gain on Hedge Transactions	Defined Benefit Postretirement Plans	Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)		
(Dollars in thousands)						
2018						
\$(504)	\$ 948	\$ 137	\$ (2,412)	\$ (1,831)	
(111)	205	29	(520)	(397)	
(831)	_	_	_	(831)	
(9,654)	(170)	(132)	351	(9,605)	
\$(11,100)	\$ 983	\$ 34	\$ (2,581)	\$ (12,664)	
2017						
\$173	\$ 361	\$ 281	\$ (2,152)	\$ (1,337)	
1,511	116	(108)	234	1,753		
\$1,684	\$ 477	\$ 173	\$ (1,918)	\$416		
	Gain on Securities (Dollars in thor 2018 \$(504) (111) (831) (9,654) \$(11,100) 2017 \$173 1,511	$\begin{array}{llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$	Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Cash Flow Hedge (Dollars in thousands) 2018 \$(504) \$948 \$137 (111) 205 29 (831) — — (9,654) (170) (132) \$(11,100) \$983 \$34 2017 \$173 \$361 \$281 1,511 116 (108)	Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Cash Flow Hedge (Dollars in thousands) 2018 \$(504) \$948 \$137 \$(2,412) (111) 205 29 (520) (831) — — — (9,654) (170) (132) 351 \$(11,100) \$983 \$34 \$(2,581) 2017 \$173 \$361 \$281 \$(2,152) 1,511 116 (108) 234	Unrealized Gain on Securities Gain (Loss) on Cash Flow Hedge Defined Benefit Postretirement Plans Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (Dollars in thousands) 2018 \$ (504) \$948 \$137 \$(2,412) \$(1,831) \$ (111) 205 29 (520) (397) (831) — — — (831) — (9,654) (170) (132) 351 (9,605) \$ (2,581) \$(1,2,664) \$ (11,100) \$983 \$34 \$(2,581) \$(12,664) \$ (2,152) \$(1,337) \$ 173 \$361 \$281 \$(2,152) \$(1,337) \$ 1,511 \$116 \$(108) \$234 \$1,753	

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various transactions to meet the financing needs of its customers, which, in accordance with GAAP, are not included in its consolidated balance sheets. These transactions include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit, which involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company minimizes its exposure to loss under these commitments by subjecting them to credit approval and monitoring procedures.

The Company enters into contractual commitments to extend credit, normally with fixed expiration dates or termination clauses, at specified rates and for specific purposes. Substantially all of these commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards at the time of loan funding. Standby letters of credit are written conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. In the event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the third party, the Company would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments the Company could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount of the commitment. If the commitment were funded, the Company would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer. The Company's policies generally require that standby letter of credit arrangements contain security and debt covenants similar to those contained in loan agreements.

The fees collected in connection with the issuance of standby letters of credit are representative of the fair value of the Company's obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. In accordance with applicable accounting standards related to guarantees, fees collected in connection with the issuance of standby letters of credit are deferred. The fees are then recognized in income proportionately over the life of the standby letter of credit agreement. The deferred standby letter of credit fees represent the fair value of the Company's potential obligations under the standby letter of credit guarantees.

The following table summarizes the above financial instruments at the dates indicated:

September 30, December 31, 2018 (Dollars in thousands) Commitments to extend credit \$2,551,217 \$2,443,478 16,704 15.534 Deferred standby letter of credit fees 128 102

Lease Commitments

Standby letters of credit

The Company leases office space, space for ATM locations, and certain branch locations under noncancelable operating leases. Several of these leases have renewal options that typically range from 5 to 10 years. Rent expense incurred under operating leases was approximately \$2.3 million and \$2.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$7.1 million and \$6.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

There has been no significant change in the future minimum lease payments payable by the Company since December 31, 2017. See the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 for information regarding leases and other commitments.

Other Contingencies

At September 30, 2018, Rockland Trust was involved in pending lawsuits that arose in the ordinary course of business. Management has reviewed these pending lawsuits with legal counsel and has taken into consideration the view of counsel as to their outcome. In the opinion of management, the final disposition of pending lawsuits is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations. The Bank is required to maintain certain reserve requirements of vault cash and/or deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. The reserve requirement was \$34.9 million and \$35.8 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

NOTE 14 - LOW INCOME HOUSING PROJECT INVESTMENTS

The Company has invested in low income housing projects that generate Low Income Housing Tax Credits ("LIHTC") which provide the Company with tax credits and operating loss tax benefits over a period of approximately 15 years. None of the original investment is expected to be repaid.

The following table presents certain information related to the Company's investments in low income housing projects as of the dates indicated:

	SeptemberDecember				
	30	31			
	2018	2017			
	(Dollars in thousands)				
Original investment value	\$47,464	\$ 47,399			
Current recorded investment	32,032	35,225			
Unfunded liability obligation	2,003	4,536			
Γax credits and benefits	5,458	(1) 5,654			
Amortization of investments	4,334	(2)4,402	(4)		
Net income tax benefit	1,124	(3) 1,253			

- (1) This amount reflects anticipated tax credits and tax benefits for the full year ended December 31, 2018.
- (2) The amortization amount reduces the tax credits and benefits anticipated for the full year ended December 31, 2018.
- (3) This amount represents the net tax benefit expected to be realized for the full year ended December 31, 2018 in determining the Company's effective tax rate.
- (4) The 2017 amount is inclusive of \$466,000 related to the revaluation of LIHTC investments as a result of the Tax Act.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, notes and tables included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, in the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are not historical facts and include expressions about management's confidence and strategies and management's expectations about new and existing programs and products, acquisitions, relationships, opportunities, taxation, technology, market conditions and economic expectations. These statements may be identified by forward-looking terminology such as "should," "expect," "believe," "view," "opportunity," "allow," "continues," "reflects," "typically," "usually," "anticipate," or similar statements or variations of such terms. Such forward-looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties and our actual results may differ materially from such forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements, in addition to those risk factors listed under the "Risk Factors" section of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, include, but are not limited to:

**a weakening in the United States economy in general and the regional and local economies within the New England region and the Company's market area;

adverse changes or volatility in the local real estate market;

adverse changes in asset quality including an unanticipated credit deterioration in our loan portfolio including those related to one or more large commercial relationships;

acquisitions may not produce results at levels or within time frames originally anticipated and may result in unforeseen integration issues or impairment of goodwill and/or other intangibles;

inability to raise capital on terms that are favorable;

additional regulatory oversight and additional costs associated with the Company's anticipated increase in assets to over \$10 billion;

changes in trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System;

higher than expected tax expense, resulting from failure to comply with general tax laws, changes in tax laws, or failure to comply with requirements of the federal New Markets Tax Credit program;

*unexpected changes in market interest rates for interest earning assets and/or interest bearing liabilities;

unexpected increased competition in the Company's market area;

unanticipated loan delinquencies, loss of collateral, decreased service revenues, and other potential negative effects on our business caused by severe weather or other external events;

- a deterioration in the conditions of the securities markets;
- a deterioration of the credit rating for U.S. long-term sovereign debt;

our inability to adapt to changes in information technology, including changes to industry accepted delivery models driven by a migration to the internet as a means of service delivery;

electronic fraudulent activity within the financial services industry, especially in the commercial banking sector; adverse changes in consumer spending and savings habits;

failure to consummate or a delay in consummating the acquisitions of MNB Bancorp and Blue Hills Bancorp, which are subject to certain standard conditions, including regulatory approvals and shareholder approval for the Blue Hills Bancorp transaction;

the inability to realize expected synergies from merger transactions in the amounts or in the timeframe anticipated; inability to retain customers and employees, including those acquired in the MNB Bancorp and Blue Hills Bancorp acquisitions;

the effect of laws and regulations regarding the financial services industry including, but not limited to, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and the Consumer Protection Act and regulatory uncertainty surrounding these laws and regulations;

changes in laws and regulations (including laws and regulations concerning taxes, banking, securities and insurance) generally applicable to the Company's business;

changes in accounting policies, practices and standards, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies as well as the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, and other accounting standard setters;

cyber security attacks or intrusions that could adversely impact our businesses; and other unexpected material adverse changes in our operations or earnings.

Except as required by law, the Company disclaims any intent or obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking statements, whether in response to new information, future events or otherwise. Any public statements or disclosures by the Company following this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q which modify or impact any of the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q will be deemed to modify or supersede such statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Selected Ouarterly Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial and other data of the Company set forth below does not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information, including the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes, appearing elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

		Three Months Ended								
	September 30, 2018		June 30, 2018		March 31, 2018		December 31 2017	1,	September 2017	30,
	(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)									
Financial condition data										
Securities	\$1,011,578	3	\$1,002,921	L	\$996,287		\$946,510		\$909,221	1
Loans	6,527,402		6,479,271		6,362,056		6,355,553	}	6,289,90	2
Allowance for loan losses	(63,235)	(62,557)	(60,862)	(60,643)	(59,710)
Goodwill and other intangible assets	239,185		239,724		240,268		241,147		242,105	
Total assets	8,375,497		8,381,002		8,090,410		8,082,029)	8,052,919	9
Total deposits	6,976,239		7,013,490		6,751,511		6,729,253	}	6,682,94	2
Total borrowings	299,739		300,792		298,939		323,698		340,683	
Stockholders' equity	998,305		977,065		956,059		943,809		931,224	
Nonperforming loans	45,394		47,112		47,713		49,638		50,277	
Nonperforming assets	45,584		47,357		48,071		50,250		53,175	
Income statement										
Interest income	\$82,875		\$79,167		\$73,749		\$72,876		\$71,778	
Interest expense	6,641		5,999		5,278		5,044		4,705	
Net interest income	76,234		73,168		68,471		67,832		67,073	
Provision for loan losses	1,075		2,000		500		1,300		_	
Noninterest income	23,264		21,887		19,863		21,914		20,770	
Noninterest expenses	55,439		52,688		53,451		51,467		51,310	
Net income	33,015		31,118		27,555		22,064		23,852	
Per share data										
Net income—basic	\$1.20		\$1.13		\$1.00		\$0.80		\$0.87	
Net income—diluted	1.20		1.13		1.00		0.80		0.87	
Cash dividends declared	0.38		0.38		0.38		0.32		0.32	
Book value per share	36.25		35.49		34.75		34.38		33.94	
Tangible book value per share (1)	27.56		26.78		26.02		25.60		25.12	
Performance ratios										
Return on average assets	1.57	%	1.52	%	1.39	%	1.08	%	1.18	%
Return on average common equity	13.19	%	12.85	%	11.73	%	9.28	%	10.18	%

Table of Contents

Net interest margin (on a fully tax equivalent basis)	% 94	% 89	% 77	% 64	% 65
Equity to assets	% 1.92	₩.66	₩1.82	₩.68	% 1.56
Dividend payout ratio	3 4.69	3 3.60	3 4.88	3 9.79	% 6.80
Asset Quality Ratios					
Nonperforming loans as a percent of gross loans	% 70	% 73	% 75	% 78	% 80
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total assets	% 54	% 57	% 59	% 62	% 66
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans	% 97	% 97	% 96	% 95	% 95
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperforming loans	1 39.30	1 82.78	1 27.56	1/2 2.17	% 18.76
Capital ratios					
Tier 1 leverage capital ratio	% 0.49	1 0.39	% 0.32	% 0.04	% 0.03
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio	% 1.98	₩1.64	% 1.47	% 1.20	% 1.13
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio	1 3.07	12.73	1 2.57	12.31	% 2.24
Total risk-based capital ratio	% .58	V4 .24	% 4.08	173.82	1 3.75

⁽¹⁾ Represents a non-GAAP measure. For reconciliation to GAAP book value per share, see Item 2 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Executive Level Overview - Non-GAAP Measures" below.

Executive Level Overview

Management evaluates the Company's operating results and financial condition using measures that include net income, earnings per share, return on assets and equity, return on tangible common equity, net interest margin, tangible book value per share, asset quality indicators, and many others. These metrics are used by management to make key decisions regarding the Company's balance sheet, liquidity, interest rate sensitivity, and capital resources and assist with identifying opportunities for improving the Company's financial position or operating results. The Company is focused on organic growth, but will also consider acquisition opportunities that can provide a satisfactory financial return. During the second quarter of 2018, the Company announced the signing of a definitive merger agreement with MNB Bancorp ("MNB"), which is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2018. During the third quarter of 2018, the Company announced the signing of a definitive merger agreement with Blue Hills Bancorp ("BHB"), which is expected to close in the first half of 2019.

Interest-Earning Assets

Management's balance sheet strategy emphasizes commercial and home equity lending. The results depicted in the following table reflect an overall increase in total loans over the past five quarters due to the results of that strategy, as well as the impact from acquisitions. For the third quarter of 2018, the Company experienced loan growth across all major categories.

Management strives to be disciplined about loan pricing and considers interest rate sensitivity when generating loan assets. The Company has gradually and intentionally shifted its balance sheet composition so that its interest-rate risk position is fundamentally asset-sensitive. Management takes a disciplined approach to credit underwriting, seeking to avoid undue credit risk and loan losses.

Funding and Net Interest Margin

The Company's overall sources of funding reflect strong business and retail deposit growth, supporting management's emphasis on core deposit growth to fund loans, as depicted by the following chart:

As of September 30, 2018, core deposits comprised 90.25% of total deposits. The continued emphasis on core deposits has resulted in a cost of deposits of 0.30% for the 2018 third quarter, which increased by three basis points when compared to the second quarter of 2018.

The Company's net interest margin was 3.94% for the quarter ended September 30, 2018, a five basis point increase from the second quarter of 2018, reflecting the Company's asset sensitive position, as shown by the following chart:

Noninterest Income

Management continues to focus on noninterest income growth, which is primarily comprised of deposit account fees, interchange and ATM fees, investment management fees and mortgage banking income. The following chart shows the components of noninterest income over the past five quarters:

Expense Control

Management seeks to take a balanced approach to noninterest expense control by monitoring the management of ongoing operating expenses while making needed capital expenditures and prudently investing in growth initiatives. The Company's primary expenses arise from Rockland Trust's employee salaries and benefits, as well as expenses associated with buildings and equipment. The following chart depicts the Company's efficiency ratio on a GAAP basis (calculated by dividing noninterest expense by the sum of noninterest income and net interest income), as well as the Company's efficiency ratio on a non-GAAP operating basis, if applicable (calculated by dividing noninterest expense, excluding certain noncore items, by the sum of noninterest income, excluding certain noncore items, and net interest income), over the past five quarters:

*See "Non-GAAP Measures" below for a reconciliation to GAAP financial measures.

Tax Effectiveness

The Company participates in federal and state tax credit programs designed to promote economic development, affordable housing, and job creation. The Company continues to participate in the federal New Markets Tax Credit program and has also made low-income housing tax credit investments. The Company has also established security corporation subsidiaries and, through its subsidiaries, purchased tax-exempt bonds. Federal and state tax credit program participation and other tax strategies help the Company operate in a more tax effective manner and sometimes also create a competitive advantage for Rockland Trust and its community development subsidiaries. During the third quarter of 2018, the Company's effective tax rate was 23.19%.

Capital

The Company's approach with respect to revenue, expense, and tax effectiveness is designed to promote long-term earnings growth. Strong earnings retention has contributed to capital growth. Book value per share increased 2.1% in the third quarter of 2018 and 6.8% over the past four quarters. In addition, tangible book value per share rose 2.9% in the third quarter of 2018 and was higher by 9.7% over the past four quarters (see "Non-GAAP Measures" below for a reconciliation of non-GAAP measures). Stockholders' equity as a percentage of total assets was 11.92% for the third quarter of 2018, compared to 11.66% in the second quarter of 2018. The Company's tangible common equity ratio (or tangible common equity as a percentage of tangible assets) rose to 9.33% for the third quarter of 2018, as compared to 9.06% in the second quarter of 2018. See "Non-GAAP Measures" below for a reconciliation of non-GAAP measures. The following chart shows the Company's book value and tangible book value per share over the past five quarters:

*See "Non-GAAP Measures" below for a reconciliation to GAAP financial measures.

The Company's growth in capital enables the payment of cash dividends. The Company declared quarterly cash dividends of \$0.38 per share for the first three quarters of 2018, representing an increase of 18.8% from the 2017 quarterly dividend rate of \$0.32 per share.

Third Quarter 2018 Results

Net income for the third quarter of 2018 was \$33.0 million, or \$1.20 on a diluted earnings per share basis, an increase of 38.4% and 37.9%, respectively, as compared to \$23.9 million, or \$0.87 on a diluted earnings per share basis, for the prior year third quarter. The third quarter of 2018 included merger and acquisition costs which the Company deems to be noncore. Excluding these merger and acquisition expenses, third quarter 2018 operating net income was \$34.9 million compared to operating net income from the third quarter of 2017 of \$23.9 million, an increase of 46.5%. See "Non-GAAP Measures" below for a reconciliation of non-GAAP measures.

2018 Outlook

During the Company's third quarter 2018 earnings call, the Company stated that it anticipates the following for the full year ending December 31, 2018:

Loan and deposit growth for the full year 2018 to be in the low to mid-single digit range, excluding the MNB acquisition;

Assuming no further federal funds rate increases, the full year 2018 net interest margin is expected to expand by 30 to 32 basis points versus the full year 2017;

Net interest margin will increase 4 to 6 basis points in the fourth quarter;

Most noninterest income categories (with the exception of gain on life insurance benefits) are expected to be higher during the fourth quarter as compared to the third quarter;

Noninterest expense is expected to up slightly in the fourth quarter, even when including the MNB acquisition with the operating efficiency ratio improving for the remainder of the year; and

The effective tax rate for the remainder of the year (excluding discrete items) is expected to be approximately 23.0%.

Non-GAAP Measures

When management assesses the Company's financial performance for purposes of making day-to-day and strategic decisions, it does so based upon the performance of its core banking business, which is primarily derived from the combination of net interest income and noninterest or fee income, reduced by operating expenses, the provision for loan losses, and the impact of income taxes and other noncore items shown in the table that follows. There are items that impact the Company's results that management believes are unrelated to its core banking business such as gains or losses on the sales of securities, merger and acquisition expenses and other items, such as one-time adjustments as a result of changes in laws and regulations. Management, therefore, computes certain non-GAAP measures including net operating earnings and operating EPS, noninterest income on an operating basis and efficiency ratio on an operating basis, which exclude items management considers to be noncore. Management believes excluding these items facilitates greater visibility into the Company's core banking business and underlying trends that may, to some extent, be obscured by inclusion of such items.

Management also supplements its evaluation of financial performance with an analysis of tangible book value per share (which is computed by dividing stockholders' equity less goodwill and identifiable intangible assets, or tangible common equity, by common shares outstanding) and with the Company's tangible common equity ratio (which is computed by dividing tangible common equity by tangible assets) which are non-GAAP measures. The Company has included information on these tangible ratios because management believes that investors may find it useful to have access to the same analytical tools used by management to assess performance and identify trends. The Company has recognized goodwill and other intangible assets in conjunction with merger and acquisition activities. Excluding the impact of goodwill and other intangibles in measuring asset and capital values for the ratios provided, along with other bank standard capital ratios, facilitates comparison of the capital adequacy of the Company to other companies in the financial services industry.

These non-GAAP measures should not be viewed as a substitute for financial results determined in accordance with GAAP. An item which management deems to be noncore and excludes when computing these non-GAAP measures can be of substantial importance to the Company's results for any particular period. The Company's non-GAAP performance measures are not necessarily comparable to similarly named non-GAAP performance measures which may be presented by other companies.

Table of Contents

The following tables summarize adjustments for noncore items for the time periods indicated below and reconcile non-GAAP measures:

	Three Montl	hs Ended Sept		
	Net Income		Diluted Earnings	Per Share
	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollars in th	ousands, excep	ot per share	data)
Net income available to common shareholders (GAAP)	\$33,015	\$23,852	\$1.20	\$0.87
Non-GAAP adjustments				
Noninterest expense components				
Merger and acquisition expenses	2,688	_	0.10	_
Total impact of noncore items	2,688		0.10	
Net tax benefit associated with noncore items (1)	(756)	_	(0.03)	_
Noncore items, net of tax		\$ —	\$0.07	\$ —
Operating net income (Non-GAAP)	\$34,947	\$23,852	\$1.27	\$0.87
	Nine Months Ended September 30			
	Nine Months	Ended Septe	mber 30	
	Nine Months Net Income	s Ended Septe	Diluted	Per Share
		s Ended Septe	Diluted	Per Share 2017
	Net Income 2018	·	Diluted Earnings 2018	2017
Net income available to common shareholders (GAAP)	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th	2017	Diluted Earnings 2018 ot per share	2017 data)
Net income available to common shareholders (GAAP) Non-GAAP adjustments	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th	2017 ousands, excep	Diluted Earnings 2018 ot per share	2017 data)
	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th	2017 ousands, excep	Diluted Earnings 2018 ot per share	2017 data)
Non-GAAP adjustments	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th	2017 ousands, excep \$65,140	Diluted Earnings 2018 ot per share	2017 data)
Non-GAAP adjustments Noninterest expense components	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th \$91,688	2017 ousands, excep \$65,140	Diluted Earnings 2018 of per share \$3.32	2017 data) \$2.38
Non-GAAP adjustments Noninterest expense components Merger and acquisition expenses	Net Income 2018 (Dollars in th \$91,688) 3,122 3,122	2017 ousands, excep \$65,140	Diluted Earnings 2018 ot per share \$3.32 0.12 0.12	2017 data) \$2.38 0.12 0.12

⁽¹⁾ The net tax benefit associated with noncore items is determined by assessing whether each noncore item is included or excluded from net taxable income and applying the Company's combined marginal tax rate to only those items included in net taxable income.

	Three Months Ended										
	September 2018		2018		March 31 2018			September 30 2017			
	(Dollars in t	thou	sands)								
Net interest income (GAAP)	\$76,234		\$73,168	3	\$68,471	l	\$67,832	2	\$67,073	3	(a)
Noninterest income (GAAP)	\$23,264		\$21,887	7	\$19,863	3	\$21,914	4	\$20,770)	(b)
Noninterest income on an operating basis (Non-GAAP)*	\$23,264		\$21,887	7	\$19,863	3	\$21,914	4	\$20,770)	(c)
Noninterest expense (GAAP) Less:	\$55,439		\$52,688	3	\$53,451	l	\$51,467	7	\$51,310)	(d)
Merger and acquisition expense	2,688		434		_		_		_		
Noninterest expense on an operating basis (Non-GAAP)	\$52,751		\$52,254	1	\$53,451	1	\$51,467	7	\$51,310)	(e)
Total revenue (GAAP)	\$99,498		\$95,055 \$8		\$88,334		\$89,746		\$87,843		(a+b)
Total operating revenue (Non-GAAP)*	\$99,498		\$95,055	5	\$88,334	1	\$89,746	5	\$87,843	3	(a+c)
Ratios											
Noninterest income as a % of revenue (GAAP based)	23.38	%	23.03	%	22.49	%	24.42	%	23.64	%	(b/(a+b))
Noninterest income as a % of revenue on an operating basis (Non-GAAP)*	23.38	%	23.03	%	22.49	%	24.42	%	23.64	%	(c/(a+c))
Efficiency ratio (GAAP based)	55.72	%	55.43	%	60.51	%	57.35	%	58.41	%	(d/(a+b))
Efficiency ratio on an operating basis (Non-GAAP)	53.02	%	54.97	%	60.51	%	57.35	%	58.41	%	(e/(a+c))

 $[\]ensuremath{^{*}}$ There were no adjustments for the periods presented.

The following table summarizes the calculation of the Company's tangible common equity ratio and tangible book value per share for the periods indicated:

value per share for the periods maleuted.										
	September 3 2018	0,	June 30 2018		March 31 2018		December 3 2017	31	September 3 2017	30,
	(Dollars in th	ous	sands, except	per	share data)					
Tangible common equity										
Stockholders' equity (GAAP)	\$998,305		\$977,065		\$956,059		\$943,809		\$931,224	(a)
Less: Goodwill and other intangibles	239,185		239,724		240,268		241,147		242,105	
Tangible common equity (Non-GAAP)	759,120		737,341		715,791		702,662		689,119	(b)
Tangible assets										
Assets (GAAP)	8,375,498		8,381,002		8,090,410		8,082,029		8,052,919	(c)
Less: Goodwill and other intangibles	239,185		239,724		240,268		241,147		242,105	
Tangible assets (Non-GAAP)	\$8,136,313		\$8,141,278	3	\$7,850,142	2	\$7,840,882	2	\$7,810,814	(d)
Common shares	27,540,843		27,532,524		27,512,328	;	27,450,190)	27,437,791	(e)
Common equity to assets ratio (GAAP)	11.92	%	11.66	%	11.82	%	11.68	%	11.56	% (a/c)
Tangible common equity to tangible assets ratio	9.33	0%	9.06	0%	9.12	0%	8.96	0%	8.82	% (b/d)
(Non-GAAP)	9.55	10	9.00	70	9.12	70	0.90	70	0.02	<i>м</i> (b/u)
Book value per share (GAAP)	\$36.25		\$35.49		\$34.75		\$34.38		\$33.94	(a/e)
Tangible book value per share (Non-GAAP)	\$27.56		\$26.78		\$26.02		\$25.60		\$25.12	(b/e)

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant judgments and uncertainties, and could potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions. The Company believes that the most critical accounting policies are those which the Company's financial condition depends upon, and which involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments.

There have been no material changes in critical accounting policies during the first nine months of 2018. Please refer to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 for a complete listing of critical accounting policies.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Securities Portfolio The Company's securities portfolio consists of trading securities, equity securities, securities available for sale, and securities which management intends to hold until maturity. Securities increased by \$65.1 million, or 6.9%, at September 30, 2018 as compared to December 31, 2017, reflecting new purchases of \$182.4 million made during the nine month period, partially offset by paydowns on existing securities. The ratio of securities to total assets was 12.08% and 11.71% at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The Company monitors investment securities for the presence of other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI"). For debt securities, the primary consideration in determining whether impairment is OTTI is whether or not the Bank expects to collect all contractual cash flows. Further details regarding the Company's analysis of potential OTTI can be found in *Note 3 "Securities"* within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof.

Residential Mortgage Loan Sales The Company's primary loan sale activity arises from the sale of government sponsored enterprise eligible residential mortgage loans. During the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Bank originated residential loans with the intention of selling them in the secondary market or to hold in the Company's residential portfolio. When a loan is sold, the Company enters into agreements that contain representations and warranties about the characteristics of the loans sold and their origination. The Company may be required to either repurchase mortgage loans or to indemnify the purchaser from losses if representations and warranties are breached. The Company incurred no losses during the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2018 and September 30, 2017 related to these activities.

The following table shows the total residential loans that were closed and whether the amounts were held in the portfolio or sold/held for sale in the secondary market during the periods indicated:

Table 1 - Closed Residential Real Estate Loans

	Three Month September 30		Nine Months September 30	
	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollars in the	ousands)		
Held in portfolio	\$52,125	\$31,766	\$132,711	\$116,537
Sold or held for sale in the secondary market	58,320	64,924	142,262	164,458
Total closed loans	\$110,445	\$96,690	\$274,973	\$280,995

The Company sold \$61.9 million and \$68.3 million in residential loans during the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$141.0 million and \$166.1 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. All loans sold during these periods were sold with servicing rights released.

Currently, the Bank sells the servicing of sold loans for a servicing release premium, simultaneous with the sale of the loan. In the past, the Bank may have opted to sell loans and retain the servicing. In the event of a sale with servicing rights retained, a mortgage servicing asset is established, which represents the then current estimated fair value based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts, when available, or alternatively is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net servicing income. The valuation model incorporates assumptions that market participants would use in estimating future net servicing income, such as the cost to service, the discount rate, an inflation rate, ancillary income, prepayment speeds and default rates and losses. Servicing rights are recorded in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets, are amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income, and are assessed for impairment based on fair value at each reporting date. Impairment is determined by stratifying the rights based on predominant characteristics, such as interest rate, loan type and investor type. Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance, to the extent that fair value is less than the capitalized amount. If the Company later determines that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income. The principal balance of loans serviced by the Bank on behalf of investors was \$244.9 million, \$277.8 million and \$292.2 million at September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017, and September 30, 2017, respectively. The following table shows the adjusted cost of the servicing rights associated with these loans and the changes for the periods indicated:

Table 2 - Mortgage Servicing Asset

<u> 1able 2 - Mortgage Servicing Asset</u>										
	Three Mon	ths Ended	Nine Months Ended							
	September	30	September 30							
	2018	2017	2018	2017						
	(Dollars in t	thousands)								
Balance at beginning of period	\$1,559	\$1,876	\$1,697	\$2,048						
Acquired portfolio	_	_	_	28						
Amortization	(71)	(100)	(230)	(309)						
Change in valuation allowance	(10)	9	11	18						
Balance at end of period	\$1,478	\$1,785	\$1,478	\$1,785						

Forward sale contracts of mortgage loans, considered derivative instruments for accounting purposes, may be utilized by the Company in its efforts to manage risk of loss associated with its mortgage loan commitments and mortgage loans held for sale. Prior to closing and funding certain one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, an interest rate lock commitment is generally extended to the borrower. During the period from commitment date to closing date, the Company is subject to the risk that market rates of interest may change. If market rates rise, investors generally will pay less to purchase such loans, resulting in a reduction in the gain on sale of the loans or, possibly, a loss. In an effort to mitigate such risk, forward delivery sales commitments are executed, under which the Company agrees to deliver whole mortgage loans to investors which economically hedges this market risk. See *Note 8*, "*Derivative and Hedging Activities*" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof for more information on mortgage activity and mortgage related derivatives.

Loan Portfolio The Company's loan portfolio increased by \$171.8 million during the first nine months of 2018, primarily driven by the commercial and industrial portfolio which increased by \$115.3 million and by the residential real estate portfolio which increased by \$47.5 million.

Table of Contents

The Company's commercial loan portfolio is comprised primarily of commercial and industrial loans as well as commercial real estate loans. Management considers the Company's commercial and industrial portfolio to be well-diversified with loans to various types of industries. The following pie chart shows the diversification of the commercial and industrial portfolio as of September 30, 2018:

Average loan size \$253

Largest individual commercial and industrial loan outstanding \$25,448

Commercial and industrial nonperforming loans/commercial and industrial loans 2.86 9

The Company's commercial real estate loan portfolio, inclusive of commercial construction, is the Company's largest loan type concentration. The Company believes that this portfolio is also well-diversified with loans secured by a variety of property types, such as owner-occupied and nonowner-occupied commercial, retail, office, industrial, warehouse, industrial development bonds, and other special purpose properties, such as hotels, motels, nursing homes, restaurants, churches, recreational facilities, marinas, and golf courses. Commercial real estate also includes loans secured by certain residential-related property types including multi-family apartment buildings, residential development tracts and condominiums. The following pie chart shows the diversification of the commercial real estate loan portfolio as of September 30, 2018:

Average loan size \$876

Largest individual commercial real estate mortgage outstanding \$27,522

Commercial real estate nonperforming loans/commercial real estate loans 0.06 %

Owner occupied commercial real estate loans 16.0 %

In addition to the commercial portfolios, the Company also originates both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential real estate loans as well as residential construction lending related to single-home residential development within the Company's market area. The Company also provides home equity loans and lines that may be made as a fixed rate term loan or under a variable rate revolving line of credit secured by a first or junior mortgage on the borrower's residence or second home. Additionally, the Company makes loans for a wide variety of other personal needs. Consumer loans primarily consist of installment loans and overdraft protections. The residential, home equity and other consumer portfolios totaled \$1.9 billion at September 30, 2018.

Asset Quality The Company continually monitors the asset quality of the loan portfolio using all available information. Based on this assessment, loans demonstrating certain payment issues or other weaknesses may be categorized as delinquent, impaired, nonperforming and/or put on nonaccrual status. Additionally, in the course of resolving such loans, the Company may choose to restructure the contractual terms of certain loans to match the borrower's ability to repay the loan based on their current financial condition. If a restructured loan meets certain criteria, it may be categorized as a troubled debt restructuring ("TDR").

<u>Delinquency</u> The Company's philosophy toward managing its loan portfolios is predicated upon careful monitoring, which stresses early detection and response to delinquent and default situations. The Company seeks to make arrangements to resolve any delinquent or default situation over the shortest possible time frame. Generally, the Company requires that a delinquency notice be mailed to a borrower upon expiration of a grace period (typically no longer than 15 days beyond the due date). Reminder notices may be sent and telephone calls may be made prior to the expiration of the grace period. If the delinquent status is not resolved within a reasonable time frame following the mailing of a delinquency notice, the Bank's personnel charged with managing its loan portfolios contacts the borrower to ascertain the reasons for delinquency and the prospects for payment. Any subsequent actions taken to resolve the delinquency will depend upon the nature of the loan and the length of time that the loan has been delinquent. The borrower's needs are considered as much as reasonably possible without jeopardizing the Bank's position. A late charge is usually assessed on loans upon expiration of the grace period.

<u>Nonaccrual Loans</u> As a general rule, loans more than 90 days past due with respect to principal or interest are classified as nonaccrual loans. However, certain loans that are more than 90 days past due may be kept on an accruing status if the loans are well secured and/or in the process of collection. The Company may also put a junior lien mortgage on nonaccrual status as a

result of delinquency with respect to the first position, which is held by another financial institution, while the junior lien is currently performing. Income accruals are suspended on all nonaccrual loans and all previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed against current income. A loan remains on nonaccrual status until it becomes current with respect to principal and interest (and in certain instances remains current for up to six months), the loan is liquidated, or when the loan is determined to be uncollectible and is charged-off against the allowance for loan losses. In the course of resolving problem loans, the Company may choose to restructure the Troubled Debt Restructurings contractual terms of certain loans. The Company attempts to work out an alternative payment schedule with the borrower in order to avoid or cure a default. Loans that are modified are reviewed by the Company to identify if a TDR has occurred, which is when, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower's financial difficulties, the Bank grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider. Terms may be modified to fit the ability of the borrower to repay in line with its current financial status and the restructuring of the loan may include adjustments to interest rates, extensions of maturity, consumer loans where the borrower's obligations have been effectively discharged through Chapter 7 Bankruptcy and the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt to the Bank, and other actions intended to minimize economic loss and avoid foreclosure or repossession of collateral. If such efforts by the Bank do not result in satisfactory performance, the loan is referred to legal counsel, at which time foreclosure proceedings are initiated. At any time prior to a sale of the property at foreclosure, the Bank may terminate foreclosure proceedings if the borrower is able to work out a satisfactory payment plan.

It is the Company's policy to have any restructured loans which are on nonaccrual status prior to being modified remain on nonaccrual status for six months, subsequent to being modified, before management considers its return to accrual status. If the restructured loan is on accrual status prior to being modified, it is reviewed to determine if the modified loan should remain on accrual status. Loans that are considered TDRs are classified as performing, unless they are on nonaccrual status or greater than 90 days delinquent. Loans classified as TDRs remain classified as such for the life of the loan, except in limited circumstances, when it may be determined that the borrower is performing under modified terms and the restructuring agreement specified an interest rate greater than or equal to an acceptable market rate for a comparable new loan at the time of the restructuring.

<u>Purchased Credit Impaired Loans</u> Purchased Credit Impaired ("PCI") loans are acquired loans which had evidence of deterioration in credit quality at the purchase date and for which it is probable that all contractually required payments will not be collected. PCI loans are recorded at fair value without any carryover of the allowance for loan losses. The excess cash flows expected to be collected over the carrying amount of the loans, referred to as the "accretable yield," is accreted into interest income over the life of the loans using the effective yield method. Accordingly, PCI loans are not subject to classification as nonaccrual in the same manner as originated loans, rather they are generally considered to be accruing loans because their interest income recognized relates to the accretable yield and not to contractual interest payments. See *Note 4*, "Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses, and Credit Quality" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof for more information.

<u>Nonperforming Assets</u> Nonperforming assets are comprised of nonaccrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more but still accruing interest, and other real estate owned ("OREO").

OREO consists of real estate properties, which have primarily served as collateral to secure loans, that are controlled or owned by the Bank. These properties are recorded at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the date control is established, resulting in a new cost basis. The amount by which the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the fair value (net of estimated costs to sell) of the foreclosed asset is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent declines in the fair value of the foreclosed asset below the new cost basis are recorded through the use of a valuation allowance. Subsequent increases in the fair value are recorded as reductions in the valuation allowance, but not below zero. All costs incurred thereafter in maintaining the property are generally charged to noninterest expense. In the event the real estate is utilized as a rental property, net rental income and expenses are recorded as incurred within noninterest expense.

The following table sets forth information regarding nonperforming assets held by the Company at the dates indicated: **Table 3 - Nonperforming Assets**

	September 30, 2018 (Dollars in tho	2017	September 30, 2017
Loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis			
Commercial and industrial	\$28,742	\$32,055	\$32,556
Commercial real estate	1,960	3,123	3,052
Small business	191	230	403
Residential real estate	8,076	8,129	8,297
Home equity	6,367	6,022	5,903
Other consumer	49	71	59
Total (1)	\$45,385	\$49,630	\$50,270
Loans past due 90 days or more but still accruing			
Other consumer	9	8	7
Total	\$9	\$8	\$7
Total nonperforming loans	\$45,394	\$49,638	\$50,277
Other real estate owned	190	612	2,898
Total nonperforming assets	\$45,584	\$50,250	\$53,175
Nonperforming loans as a percent of gross loans	0.70 %	0.78 %	0.80 %
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total assets	0.54 %	0.62 %	0.66 %

⁽¹⁾ Inclusive of TDRs on nonaccrual status of \$3.4 million, \$6.1 million, and \$5.8 million at September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017, and September 30, 2017, respectively.

The following table summarizes the changes in nonperforming assets for the periods indicated:

Table 4 - Activity in Nonperforming Assets

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Months	s Ended
	September 3 2018	0\$eptember 30, 2017	September 3 2018	0\$eptember 30, 2017
	(Dollars in th	ousands)		
Nonperforming assets beginning balance	\$47,357	\$ 54,812	\$50,250	\$61,580
New to nonperforming	4,984	3,573	10,627	11,140
Loans charged-off	(847)	(817)	(2,009)	(5,523)
Loans paid-off	(4,932)	(3,679)	(9,833)	(9,548)
Loans transferred to other real estate owned and foreclosed assets	_	(107)	_	(564)
Loans restored to performing status	(921)	(557)	(3,101)	(2,828)
New to other real estate owned	_	107	_	564
Valuation write down	_	(238)	_	(333)
Sale of other real estate owned	_		(254)	(1,505)
Other	(57)	81	(96)	192
Nonperforming assets ending balance	\$45,584	\$ 53,175	\$45,584	\$ 53,175

The following table sets forth information regarding troubled debt restructured loans as of the dates indicated:

Table 5 - Troubled Debt Restructurings

	September 3	0, December	31, September 3	30,	
	2018	2017	2017		
	(Dollars in thousands)				
Performing troubled debt restructurings	\$24,554	\$25,852	\$26,731		
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings	3,370	6,067	5,776		
Total	\$27,924	\$31,919	\$32,507		
Performing troubled debt restructurings as a % of total loans	0.38	0.41	% 0.42	%	
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings as a % of total loans	0.05	0.10	% 0.09	%	
Total troubled debt restructurings as a % of total loans	0.43	0.50	% 0.51	%	

The following table summarizes changes in TDRs for the periods indicated:

Table 6 - Activity in Troubled Debt Restructurings

	Three Month	s Ended	Nine Months Ended				
	September 30	September 30	September 30	September 30			
	2018 (Dollars in the	2017	2018	2017			
TDRs beginning balance	`		\$31,919	\$32,292			
TDRS beginning barance	\$29,023	\$32,030	\$31,919				
New to TDR status	432	799	1,045	4,006			
Transfer to OREO	_	(107)	_	(322)			
Paydowns	(1,952)	(821)	(4,612)	(3,450)			
Charge-offs	(179)	_	(428)	(19)			
TDRs ending balance	\$27,924	\$32,507	\$27,924	\$32,507			

Income accruals are suspended on all nonaccrual loans and all previously accrued and uncollected interest is reversed against current income. The table below shows interest income that was recognized or collected on all nonaccrual loans and TDRs as of the dates indicated:

Table 7 - Interest Income - Nonaccrual Loans and Troubled Debt Restructurings

	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollar	s in thou	sands)	
The amount of incremental gross interest income that would have been recorded if nonaccrual loans had been current in accordance with their original terms	\$650	\$639	\$1,918	\$1,670
The amount of interest income on nonaccrual loans and performing TDRs that was included in net income	\$519	\$434	\$1,301	\$1,148

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment

71

Three Months Nine Months

Ended 2018

2017

Ended

Table of Contents

shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Impaired loans include all commercial and industrial loans, commercial real estate loans, commercial construction and small business loans that are on nonaccrual status, TDRs, and other loans that have been categorized as impaired. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis by comparing the loan's value to either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. For impaired loans deemed collateral dependent, where impairment is measured using the fair value of the collateral, the Bank will either order a new appraisal or use another available source of collateral assessment such as a broker's opinion of value to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the collateral.

Total impaired loans at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were \$64.0 million and \$72.8 million, respectively. For additional information regarding the Company's asset quality, including delinquent loans, nonaccruals, TDRs, and impaired loans, see *Note 4*, "Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses, and Credit Quality" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof.

Potential problem loans are any loans which are not included in nonaccrual or nonperforming loans, where known information about possible credit problems of the borrowers causes management to have concerns as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with present loan repayment terms. At September 30, 2018, there were 49 relationships, with an aggregate balance of \$44.7 million, deemed to be potential problem loans. These potential problem loans continued to perform with respect to payments. Management actively monitors these loans and strives to minimize any possible adverse impact to the Company.

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers appropriate to provide for probable loan losses based upon evaluation of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The allowance is increased by providing for loan losses through a charge to expense and by credits for recoveries of loans previously charged-off and is reduced by loans being charged-off.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on increases in nonperforming loans, changes in economic conditions, or for other reasons. Additionally, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of the Bank's examination process, periodically assess the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses to access whether the allowance was determined in accordance with GAAP and applicable guidance.

The allowance for loan losses is allocated to loan types using both a formula-based approach applied to groups of loans and an analysis of certain individual loans for impairment. The formula-based approach emphasizes loss factors derived from actual historical portfolio loss rates, which are combined with an assessment of certain qualitative factors to determine the allowance amounts allocated to the various loan categories. Allowance amounts are determined based on an estimate of the historical average annual percentage rate of loan loss for each loan category, an estimate of the incurred loss emergence and confirmation period for each loan category, and certain qualitative risk factors considered in the computation of the allowance for loan losses. Additionally, the Company reviews numerous credit quality indicators when assessing the risk in its loan portfolio. For the commercial portfolio, the Company utilizes a 10-point commercial risk-rating system, which assigns a risk-grade to each borrower based on a number of quantitative and qualitative factors associated with a commercial loan transaction. Factors considered include industry and market conditions, position within the industry, earnings trends, operating cash flow, asset/liability values, debt capacity, guarantor strength, management and controls, financial reporting, collateral and other considerations.

As of September 30, 2018, the allowance for loan losses totaled \$63.2 million, or 0.97% of total loans, as compared to \$60.6 million, or 0.95% of total loans, at December 31, 2017.

The following table summarizes changes in the allowance for loan losses and other selected statistics for the periods presented:

Table 8 - Summary of Changes in the Allowance for Loan Losses

	Three Months Ended									
	September 30 2018 (Dollars in tho	•	June 30, 2018		March 31, 2018		December 31, 2017		September 3 2017	0,
Average total loans	\$6,500,907		\$6,432,28	7	\$6,334,295	,	\$6,308,374	1	\$6,275,20	00
Allowance for loan losses, beginning of period	\$62,557		\$60,862		\$60,643		\$59,710		\$59,479	
Charged-off loans	, - ,		,,		, , -		, , -		, ,	
Commercial and industrial	218		4		133		176		124	
Commercial real estate	82		_		_		39		_	
Small business	111		102		24		44		164	
Residential real estate			109		39		25		43	
Home equity	87		95		79		59		81	
Other consumer	349		259		318		343		405	
Total charged-off loans	847		569		593		686		817	
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off										
Commercial and industrial	108		59		12		11		404	
Commercial real estate	29		18		20		42		286	
Small business	10		10		9		18		17	
Residential real estate	9		1		2		2		15	
Home equity	71		23		34		31		65	
Other consumer	223		153		235		215		261	
Total recoveries	450		264		312		319		1,048	
Net loans charged-off (recovered)										
Commercial and industrial	110		(55)	121		165		(280)
Commercial real estate	53		(18)	(20)	(3)	(286)
Small business	101		92		15		26		147	
Residential real estate	(9)	108		37		23		28	
Home equity	16		72		45		28		16	
Other consumer	126		106		83		128		144	
Total net loans charged-off (recovered)	397		305		281		367		(231)
Provision for loan losses	1,075		2,000		500		1,300		_	
Total allowance for loan losses, end of period	\$63,235		\$62,557		\$60,862		\$60,643		\$59,710	
Net loans charged-off (recovered) as a percent of average total loans (annualized)	0.02	%	0.02	%	0.02	%	0.02	%	(0.01)%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans	0.97	%	0.97	%	0.96	%	0.95	%	0.95	%
Allowance for loan losses as a percent of nonperforming loans	139.30	%	132.78	%	127.56	%	122.17	%	118.76	%

For purposes of the allowance for loan losses, management segregates the loan portfolio into the portfolio segments detailed in the table below. The allocation of the allowance for loan losses is made to each loan category using the analytical techniques and estimation methods described herein. While these amounts represent management's best estimate of the distribution of probable losses at the evaluation dates, they are not necessarily indicative of either the categories in which actual losses may occur or the extent of such actual losses that may be recognized within each category. Each of these loan categories possess unique risk

characteristics that are considered when determining the appropriate level of allowance for each segment. The total allowance is available to absorb losses from any segment of the loan portfolio.

The following table sets forth the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates indicated:

Table 9 - Summary of Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

	September 2018	30,	December 31, 2017				
	Allowance Amount	Percent of Loans In Catego To Total L	ry	Allowance Amount	Percent of Loans In Catego To Total I	ry	
	(Dollars in t	housands)					
Commercial and industrial	\$15,108	15.4	%	\$13,256	14.0	%	
Commercial real estate	32,268	47.9	%	31,453	48.9	%	
Commercial construction	5,027	5.4	%	5,698	6.3	%	
Small business	1,768	2.3	%	1,577	2.1	%	
Residential real estate	3,071	12.3	%	2,822	11.9	%	
Home equity	5,554	16.5	%	5,390	16.6	%	
Other consumer	439	0.2	%	447	0.2	%	
Total allowance for loan losses	\$63,235	100.0	%	\$60,643	100.0	%	

To determine if a loan should be charged-off, all possible sources of repayment are analyzed. Possible sources of repayment include the potential for future cash flows, the value of the Bank's collateral, and the strength of co-makers or guarantors. When available information confirms that specific loans or portions thereof are uncollectible, these amounts are promptly charged-off against the allowance for loan losses and any recoveries of such previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance.

Regardless of whether a loan is unsecured or collateralized, the Company charges off the amount of any confirmed loan loss in the period when the loans, or portions of loans, are deemed uncollectible. For troubled, collateral-dependent loans, loss-confirming events may include an appraisal or other valuation that reflects a shortfall between the value of the collateral and the carrying value of the loan or receivable, or a deficiency balance following the sale of the collateral.

For additional information regarding the Company's allowance for loan losses, see *Note4*, "Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses, and Credit Quality" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock The Bank held an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Boston of \$13.1 million and \$11.6 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The FHLB is a cooperative that provides services to its member banking institutions. The primary reason for the FHLB of Boston membership is to gain access to a reliable source of wholesale funding, particularly term funding, as a tool to manage interest rate risk. The purchase of stock in the FHLB is a requirement for a member to gain access to funding. The Company purchases and/or is subject to redemption of FHLB stock proportional to the volume of funding received and views the holdings as a necessary long-term investment for the purposes of balance sheet liquidity and not for investment return.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill and other intangible assets were \$239.2 million and \$241.1 million as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The decrease in 2018 was due to amortization of definite-lived intangibles.

The Company typically performs its annual goodwill impairment testing during the third quarter of the year, unless certain indicators suggest earlier testing to be warranted. Accordingly, the Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing during the third quarter of 2018 and determined that the Company's goodwill was not impaired. Other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. There were no events or changes that indicated impairment of other intangible assets.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance Policies The Bank holds life insurance policies for the purpose of offsetting its future obligations to its employees under its retirement and benefits plans. The cash surrender value of life insurance policies was \$153.2 million and \$151.5 million at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The Company recorded tax exempt income from life insurance policies of \$984,000 and \$1.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$2.9 million and \$3.0 million for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. In addition, the Company received proceeds on life insurance policies in the amount of \$2.9 million during the third quarter of 2018, resulting in a gain of \$1.5 million.

Deposits As of September 30, 2018, total deposits were \$7.0 billion, representing a \$247.0 million, or 3.7%, increase from December 31, 2017. The Company experienced growth in all categories with a continued emphasis on core deposits, which represent 90.25% of total deposits as of September 30, 2018. The total cost of deposits was 0.30% and 0.20% for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and 0.27% and 0.19%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Company also participates in the Promontory Interfinancial Network, allowing the Bank to provide easy access to multi-million dollar Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") deposit insurance protection on certificate of deposit and money market investments for consumers, businesses and public entities. This channel allows the Company to seek additional funding in potentially large quantities by attracting deposits from outside the Bank's core market and amounted to \$51.7 million and \$48.5 million, at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. During the second quarter of 2018, the Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act was promulgated and determined that reciprocal deposits, such as those acquired through the Promontory Interfinancial Network, were no longer to be treated as brokered deposits. Accordingly, these amounts are no longer included in the total brokered amounts reported by the Company.

In addition, the Company may occasionally raise funds through the use of brokered deposits outside of the Promontory Interfinancial Network, which amounted to \$6.0 million at both September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Borrowings The Company's borrowings consist of both short-term and long-term borrowings and provide the Bank with one of its primary sources of funding. Maintaining available borrowing capacity provides the Bank with a contingent source of liquidity.

The Company's borrowings, net of applicable debt issuance costs, consisted of the following as of the periods indicated:

Table 10 - Borrowings

	September 30December 31,				
	2018	2017			
	(Dollars in the	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings	\$50,767	\$53,264			
Short-term borrowings - one year and under (1)					
Customer repurchase agreements	141,176	162,679			
Long-term borrowings - over one year (1)					
Junior subordinated debentures:					
Capital Trust V	51,504	51,503			
Slades Ferry Trust I	10,233	10,229			
Central Trust I	5,258	5,258			
Central Trust II	6,083	6,083			
Subordinated debentures	34,717	34,682			
Total long-term borrowings	\$107,795	\$107,755			
Total borrowings	\$299,738	\$323,698			

⁽¹⁾ Classification is based upon duration at origination and not predicated upon remaining time to maturity.

The Bank had \$2.9 billion of assets pledged as collateral against borrowings at both September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. These assets are primarily pledged to the FHLB of Boston and the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. Assets are also pledged as collateral for customer repurchase agreements.

Capital Resources On September 20, 2018, the Company's Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of \$0.38 per share to stockholders of record as of the close of business on October 1, 2018. This dividend was paid on October 5, 2018.

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company's and the Bank's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total, Tier 1 Capital and Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (as defined for regulatory purposes) to risk weighted assets (as defined for regulatory purposes) and Tier 1 Capital to average assets (as defined for regulatory purposes). At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company and the Bank exceeded the minimum requirements for all applicable ratios that were in effect during the respective periods. The Company's and the Bank's capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table, along with the applicable minimum requirements for each period indicated:

Table 11 - Company and Bank's Capital Amounts and Ratios

	Actual		For Capital Adequacy Purposes		To Be Well C Under Promp Corrective A Provisions	pt
	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio
	September 36 (Dollars in the	*				
Company (consolidated)						
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)	\$954,622	14.58%	\$523,794	≥8.0%	N/A	N/A
Common equity tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	784,427	11.98%	294,634	≥4.5%	N/A	N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	855,427	13.07%	392,845	≥6.0%	N/A	N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)	855,427	10.49%	335,151	≥4.0%	N/A	N/A
Bank						
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)	\$902,696	13.79%	\$523,579	≥8.0%	\$654,474	$\geq\!10.00\%$
Common equity tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	838,218	12.81%	294,513	≥4.5%	425,408	≥6.50 %
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	838,218	12.81%	392,684	≥6.0%	523,579	≥8.00 %
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)	838,218		326,079	≥4.0%	407,598	≥5.00 %
	December 31					
	(Dollars in the	ousands)				
Company (consolidated)	Φ006 00 7	12.02.07	Φ. 5.1.2.20 0	> 0.00	NT/A	N T/ A
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)	\$886,807	13.82%	\$513,398	≥8.0%	N/A	N/A
Common equity tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	718,995	11.20%	288,787	≥4.5%	N/A	N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets)	789,992	12.31%	385,049	≥6.0%	N/A	N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)	789,992	10.04%	314,756	≥4.0%	N/A	N/A
Bank						
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)	\$846,147	13.19%	\$513,175	≥8.0%	\$641,469	$\geq\!10.00\%$
Common equity tier 1 capital	784,014	12.22%	288,661	≥4.5%	416,955	≥6.50 %

(to risk weighted assets)

Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 784,014 12.22% 384,881 \geq 6.0% 513,175 \geq 8.00 % Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 784,014 9.97 % 314,630 \geq 4.0% 393,288 \geq 5.00 %

In addition to the minimum risk-based capital requirements outlined in the table above, the Company is required to maintain a minimum capital conservation buffer, in the form of common equity, in order to avoid restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses. The required amount of the capital conservation buffer is being phased-in, beginning at 0.625% on January 1, 2016 and ultimately increasing to 2.5% on January 1, 2019. At September 30, 2018 the Company's capital levels exceeded the fully-phased in buffer of 2.5%.

Dividend Restrictions In the ordinary course of business, the Company is dependent upon dividends from the Bank to provide funds for the payment of dividends to shareholders and to provide for other cash requirements. Banking regulations may limit the amount of dividends that may be paid. Approval by regulatory authorities is required if the effect of dividends declared would cause the regulatory capital of the Bank to fall below specified minimum levels. Approval is also required if dividends declared exceed the net profits for that year combined with the retained net profits for the preceding two years. Under the foregoing dividend restrictions and while maintaining its "well capitalized" status, dividends paid by the Bank to the Company totaled \$15.5 million and \$11.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and totaled \$44.5 million and \$35.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Trust Preferred Securities In accordance with the applicable accounting standard related to variable interest entities, the common stock of trusts which have issued trust preferred securities has not been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company. At both September 30, 2018 and 2017, \$71.0 million in trust preferred securities have been included in the Tier 1 capital of the Company for regulatory reporting purposes pursuant to the Federal Reserve's capital adequacy guidelines.

Community Reinvestment Act In September 2017, the FDIC and the Massachusetts Division of Banks assigned the Bank a CRA rating of Satisfactory.

Investment Management As of September 30, 2018, the Rockland Trust Investment Management Group had assets under administration of \$3.6 billion, representing 5,710 trust, fiduciary, and agency accounts. At December 31, 2017, assets under administration were \$3.5 billion, representing approximately 5,616 trust, fiduciary, and agency accounts. Included in these amounts as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are assets under administration of \$307.2 million and \$303.7 million, respectively, relating to the Company's registered investment advisor, Bright Rock Capital Management, LLC, which provides investment management services to institutional and high net worth clients. Revenue from the Investment Management Group was \$5.9 million and \$5.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$17.6 million and \$16.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Retail investments and insurance revenue was \$652,000 and \$565,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$2.0 million and \$1.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Retail investments and insurance revenue includes commission revenue from LPL Financial ("LPL") and its affiliates and their insurance subsidiary, LPL Insurance Associates, Inc., which offers the sale of mutual fund shares, unit investment trust shares, general securities, fixed and variable annuities and life insurance. Registered representatives who are both employed by the Bank and licensed and contracted with LPL are onsite to offer these products to the Bank's customer base. These same agents are also approved and appointed with various other Broker General Agents for the purposes of processing insurance solutions for clients.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table provides a summary of results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017:

Table 12 - Summary of Results of Operations

	Three Mor September		Ended		Nine Mont September		Ended	
	2018		2017		2018		2017	
	(Dollars in	thou	isands, exce	pt p	er share data	ı)		
Net Income	\$33,015		\$23,852	2	\$91,688	3	\$65,140)
Diluted earnings per share	\$1.20		\$0.87		\$3.32		\$2.38	
Return on average assets	1.57	%	1.18	%	1.49	%	1.11	%
Return on average equity	13.19	%	10.18	%	12.60	%	9.65	%
Net interest margin	3.94	%	3.65	%	3.87	%	3.59	%

Net Interest Income The amount of net interest income is affected by changes in interest rates and by the volume, mix, and interest rate sensitivity of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

On a fully tax equivalent basis ("FTE"), net interest income for the third quarter of 2018 was \$76.4 million, representing an increase of \$9.0 million, or 13.3%, when compared to the third quarter of 2017. Net interest income benefited from the Company's sustained asset sensitive position.

The following tables present the Company's average balances, net interest income, interest rate spread, and net interest margin for the three and nine months ending September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Nontaxable income from loans and securities is presented on a FTE basis by adjusting tax-exempt income upward by an amount equivalent to the prevailing income taxes that would have been paid if the income had been fully taxable.

Table 13 - Average Balance, Interest Earned/Paid & Average Yields Quarter-to-Date

	Three Months Ended September 30							
	2018	_			2017			
	Average Balance	Interest Earned/ Paid	Yield/I	Rate	Average Balance	Interest Earned/ Paid	Yield/	Rate
	(Dollars in thous							
Interest-earning assets								
Interest-earning deposits with banks, federal funds sold, and short term investments Securities	\$180,802	\$916	2.01	%	\$132,327	\$417	1.25	%
Securities - trading	1,608	_	_	%	1,299			%
Securities - taxable investments	1,005,787	6,664			908,560	5,642	2.46	
Securities - nontaxable investments (1)	1,992	18			2,817	29	4.08	
Total securities	\$1,009,387				\$912,676	\$5,671	2.47	
Loans held for sale	8,340	61			5,766	33	2.27	
Loans (2)	0,5 10	01	2.70	,0	2,700	55	,	, c
Commercial and industrial	975,980	11,936	4.85	%	868,358	9,173	4.19	%
Commercial real estate (1)	3,144,613	37,048			3,104,098	32,875	4.20	
Commercial construction	356,091	4,572			365,143	4,177	4.54	
Small business	147,518	2,183			130,275	1,828	5.57	
Total commercial	4,624,202	55,739	4.78	%	4,467,874	48,053	4.27	%
Residential real estate	792,154	7,959	3.99	%	749,813	7,656	4.05	%
Home equity	1,071,511	11,457	4.24	%	1,046,894	10,081	3.82	%
Total consumer real estate	1,863,665	19,416	4.13	%	1,796,707	17,737	3.92	%
Other consumer	13,040	244	7.42	%	10,619	241	9.00	%
Total loans	\$6,500,907	\$75,399	4.60	%	\$6,275,200	\$66,031	4.17	%
Total interest-earning assets	\$7,699,436	\$83,058	4.28	%	\$7,325,969	\$72,152	3.91	%
Cash and due from banks	106,273				100,228			
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	13,107				12,734			
Other assets	547,296				567,297			
Total assets	\$8,366,112				\$8,006,228			
Interest-bearing liabilities								
Deposits								
Savings and interest checking accounts	\$2,654,157	\$1,433	0.21	%	\$2,562,557	\$992	0.15	%
Money market	1,373,594				1,309,457		0.35	
Time deposits	652,638	1,762	1.07	%	611,080	1,168	0.76	%
Total interest-bearing deposits	\$4,680,389	\$5,251	0.45	%	\$4,483,094	\$3,331	0.29	%
Borrowings								
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings	\$50,770	\$248	1.94	%	\$53,926	\$302	2.22	%
Customer repurchase agreements	148,575	75			172,387	67	0.15	
Junior subordinated debentures	73,077	640			73,070	578	3.14	
Subordinated debentures	34,711	427			34,664	427	4.89	
Total borrowings	\$307,133	\$1,390	1.80	%	\$334,047	\$1,374	1.63	%

Table of Contents

Total interest-bearing liabilities	\$4,987,522 \$6,641	0.53%	\$4,817,141	\$4,705	0.39%
Demand deposits	2,300,943		2,174,600		
Other liabilities	84,442		84,782		
Total liabilities	\$7,372,907		\$7,076,523		
Stockholders' equity	993,205		929,705		
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$8,366,112		\$8,006,228		
Net interest income (1)	\$76,417	'		\$67,447	
Interest rate spread (3)		3.75%			3.52%
Net interest margin (4)		3.94%			3.65%
Supplemental information					
Total deposits, including demand deposits	\$6,981,332 \$5,251		\$6,657,694	\$3,331	
Cost of total deposits		0.30%			0.20%
Total funding liabilities, including demand deposits	\$7,288,465 \$6,641		\$6,991,741	\$4,705	
Cost of total funding liabilities		0.36%			0.27%

The total amount of adjustment to present interest income and yield on a FTE basis is \$183,000 and \$374,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2018

and 2017, respectively. The FTE adjustment relates to nontaxable investment securities with average balances of \$2.0 million and \$2.8 million and nontaxable industrial development bonds recorded within commercial real estate with average balances of \$57.4 million and \$69.3 million, for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

⁽²⁾ Average nonaccruing loans are included in loans.

Interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

⁽⁴⁾ Net interest margin represents annualized net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

<u>Table 14 - Average Balance, Interest Earned/Paid & Average Yields Year-to-Date</u>

	Nine Months E	nded Septemb	er 30	30 2017			
	2018 Average Balance	Interest Earned/	Yield/ Rate	Average Balance	Interest Earned/	Yield/ Rate	
	(Dollars in thou	Paid sands)			Paid		
Interest-earning assets	•						
Interest-earning deposits with banks, federal funds sold, and short-term investments	\$128,646	\$1,768	1.84%	\$103,437	\$814	1.05%	
Securities							
Securities - trading	1,547	_	— %	1,198	_	— %	
Securities - equity							
Securities - taxable investments	988,885	19,381		894,809	16,618	2.48%	
Securities - nontaxable investments (1)	2,152	58	3.60%		109	4.21%	
Total securities	\$992,584	\$19,439		\$899,469	\$16,727	2.49%	
Loans held for sale	5,291	110	2.78%	4,086	68	2.23%	
Loans (2)							
Commercial and industrial	933,163	32,667	4.68%	881,387	26,913	4.08%	
Commercial real estate (1)	3,115,076	105,511	4.53%	3,054,336	94,057	4.12%	
Commercial construction	390,061	14,499	4.97%	353,134	11,859	4.49%	
Small business	139,523	6,053	5.80%	127,938	5,284	5.52%	
Total commercial	4,577,823	158,730	4.64%	4,416,795	138,113	4.18%	
Residential real estate	772,663	23,121	4.00%	699,793	20,779	3.97%	
Home equity	1,061,280	32,492	4.09%	1,024,164	28,233	3.69%	
Total consumer real estate	1,833,943	55,613	4.05%	1,723,957	49,012	3.80%	
Other consumer	11,340	669	7.89%	10,828	722	8.91%	
Total loans	\$6,423,106	\$215,012	4.48%	\$6,151,580	\$187,847	4.08%	
Total interest-earning assets	\$7,549,627	\$236,329	4.19%	\$7,158,572	\$205,456	3.84%	
Cash and due from banks	101,642			97,457			
Federal Home Loan Bank stock	13,174			13,180			
Other assets	546,276			553,129			
Total assets	\$8,210,719			\$7,822,338			
Interest-bearing liabilities							
Deposits							
Savings and interest checking accounts	\$2,632,311	\$3,819	0.19%	\$2,536,954	\$2,604	0.14%	
Money market	1,357,488	5,087	0.50%	1,285,492	2,963	0.31%	
Time deposits	646,055	4,867	1.01%	618,518	3,443	0.74%	
Total interest-bearing deposits	\$4,635,854	\$13,773		\$4,440,964		0.27%	
Borrowings							
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings	\$62,055	803	1.73%	\$61,206	\$1,123	2.45%	
Customer repurchase agreements	149,174	205		161,850	178	0.15%	
Junior subordinated debentures	73,076	1,855		73,074	1,697	3.10%	
Subordinated debentures	34,699	1,282		34,652	1,282	4.95%	
Total borrowings	\$319,004	\$4,145		\$330,782	\$4,280	1.73%	
Total interest-bearing liabilities	\$4,954,858			\$4,771,746		0.37%	
Demand deposits	2,202,305			2,063,668	. , ,		
T	,,			, ,			

Table of Contents

Other liabilities	80,964			84,063		
Total liabilities	\$7,238,127			\$6,919,477		
Stockholders' equity	972,592			902,861		
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$8,210,719			\$7,822,338		
Net interest income (1)	9	\$218,411			\$192,166	
Interest rate spread (3)			3.71%			3.47%
Net interest margin (4)			3.87%			3.59%
Supplemental information						
Total deposit, including demand deposits	\$6,838,159	\$13,773		\$6,504,632	\$9,010	
Cost of total deposits			0.27%			0.19%
Total funding liabilities, including demand deposits	\$7,157,163	\$17,918		\$6,835,414	\$13,290	
Cost of total funding liabilities			0.33%			0.26%

The total amount of adjustment to present interest income and yield on a FTE basis is \$538,000 and \$1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The FTE adjustment relates to nontaxable investment securities with average balances of \$2.2 million and \$3.5 million and nontaxable industrial development bonds recorded within commercial real estate with average balances of \$54.8 million and \$71.1 million for the nine months

ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

⁽²⁾ Average nonaccruing loans are included in loans.

(3) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average cost of interest-bearing liabilities.

⁽⁴⁾ Net interest margin represents annualized net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

The following table presents certain information on a FTE basis regarding changes in the Company's interest income and interest expense for the periods indicated. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided with respect to changes attributable to: (1) changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior period volume), (2) changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by old rate), and (3) changes in volume/rate (change in volume multiplied by change in rate) which is allocated to the change due to rate column:

Table 15 - Volume Rate Analysis	11011 15 0	mocaici	i to the ch	ange due	to rate v	Zorumi.	
Table 13 Volume Rate / Mary 515	Three M	Ionths En per 30	ded	Nine Mont	ths Ended	September	
	2018 Co	mpared T	To 2017	2018 Comp	pared To	2017	
	Due to Rate	Change Due to Volume in thousan	Change	Change Due to Rate	Change Due to Volume	Total Change	
Income on interest-earning assets							
Interest earning deposits, federal funds sold and short term	\$346	\$153	\$400	\$756	\$198	\$954	
investments	Ψυπο	Ψ133	ΨΤΖΖ	Ψ730	Ψ170	ΨΖΖΤ	
Securities							
Securities - taxable investments	418	604	1,022	1,016		2,763	
Securities - nontaxable investments (1)	(3)	(8)		(10)	(41)	` ′)
Total securities			1,011			2,712	
Loans held for sale	13	15	28	22	20	42	
Loans							
Commercial and industrial		1,137		4,173		5,754	
Commercial real estate (1)	3,744		4,173	9,584		11,454	
Commercial construction	499	(104)		1,400		2,640	
Small business	113	242	355	291	478	769	
Total commercial			7,686			20,617	
Residential real estate	(129)		303	178	2,164	2,342	
Home equity	1,139	237	1,376	3,236	1,023	4,259	
Total consumer real estate			1,679			6,601	
Other consumer	(52)	55	3	(87)	34	(53))
Total loans (1)(2)			9,368			27,165	
Total income of interest-earning assets			\$10,906			\$30,873	
Expense of interest-bearing liabilities							
Deposits							
Savings and interest checking accounts	\$406	\$35	\$441	\$1,117	\$98	\$1,215	
Money market	828	57	885	1,958	166	2,124	
Time certificates of deposits	515	79	594	1,271	153	1,424	
Total interest bearing deposits			1,920			4,763	
Borrowings							
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings	(36)	(18)	(54)	(336)	16	(320)
Customer repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings	17	(9)	8	41	(14)	27	
Junior subordinated debentures	62	_	62	158	_	158	
Subordinated debentures	(1)	1	_	(2)	2	_	
Total borrowings			16			(135))
Total expense of interest-bearing liabilities			1,936			4,628	
Change in net interest income			\$8,970			\$26,245	

⁽¹⁾ The table above reflects income determined on a FTE basis. See footnote (1) to table 13 and 14 above for the related adjustments. (2)

Loans include portfolio loans and nonaccrual loans; however, unpaid interest on nonaccrual loans has not been included for purposes of determining interest income.

Provision For Loan Losses The provision for loan losses represents the charge to expense that is required to maintain an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses. The provision for loan losses was \$1.1 million and \$3.6 million, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively, as compared to zero and \$1.7 million for the comparable year-ago periods. The Company's allowance for loan losses, as a percentage of total loans, was 0.97% at September 30, 2018, and 0.95% at both December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017. The Company recorded net charge-offs of \$397,000 and \$983,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, as compared to net recoveries of \$231,000 and net charge-offs of \$3.5 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

Management's periodic evaluation of the appropriate allowance for loan losses considers past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks within the loan portfolio, adverse situations which may affect the borrowers' ability to repay, the estimated value of the underlying collateral, if any, and current economic conditions.

Regarding the estimated value of the underlying collateral, substantial portions of the Bank's loans are secured by real estate in Massachusetts and Rhode Island. Accordingly, the ultimate collectability of a substantial portion of the Bank's loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in property values within those states.

In general, the national and local economies expanded at a moderate pace through much of the third quarter of 2018. A tight labor market persists in the New England market with higher-skilled workers in short supply; wage increases appear mixed in the region. Retailers reported generally favorable sales trends year-over-year, however some trepidation over looming tariffs and their effects on prices and sales remains in the marketplace. Median sales prices on residential real estate have continued to increase through the busy spring and summer seasons, owing to strong demand and a tight supply of housing. Commercial real estate markets remained relatively strong, although rising construction costs due to labor shortages and material price increases have begun to place some pressure on certain projects. Leasing activity for office space remained strong in the New England region with rents remaining stable or increasing slightly. The overall outlook for the near term remains positive for the New England region.

Noninterest Income The following table sets forth information regarding noninterest income for the periods shown: **Table 16 - Noninterest Income**

Three Months Ended

	September 30		Change			
	2018	2017	Amount		%	
	(Dollars in	thousands)				
Deposit account fees	\$4,658	\$4,401	\$257		5.84	%
Interchange and ATM fees	4,947	4,525	422		9.33	%
Investment management	6,564	5,967	597		10.01	%
Mortgage banking income	1,222	1,338	(116)	(8.67)%
Gain on life insurance benefits	1,463	_	1,463		100.00%	ó
Gain on sale of equity securities	4	12	(8)	(66.67)%
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies	984	1,019	(35)	(3.43)%
Loan level derivative income	392	784	(392)	(50.00)%
Other noninterest income	3,030	2,724	306		11.23	%
Total	\$23,264	\$20,770	\$2,494	-	12.01	%
	Nine Mont	hs Ended				
	Nine Mont September		Change			
			Change Amount		%	
	September	30 2017	Ü		%	
Deposit account fees	September 2018 (Dollars in	30 2017	Amount		% 2.27	%
Deposit account fees Interchange and ATM fees	September 2018 (Dollars in	30 2017 thousands)	Amount			% %
•	September 2018 (Dollars in § 13,640	30 2017 thousands) \$13,337	Amount \$303		2.27	, -
Interchange and ATM fees	2018 (Dollars in \$13,640 13,889	2017 thousands) \$13,337 12,881	*303 1,008)	2.27 7.83	%
Interchange and ATM fees Investment management	September 2018 (Dollars in \$13,640 13,889 19,528	30 2017 thousands) \$13,337 12,881 17,576	\$303 1,008 1,952)	2.27 7.83 11.11	% %)%
Interchange and ATM fees Investment management Mortgage banking income	September 2018 (Dollars in the \$13,640 13,889 19,528 3,130	30 2017 thousands) \$13,337 12,881 17,576	\$303 1,008 1,952 (479		2.27 7.83 11.11 (13.27	% %)%
Interchange and ATM fees Investment management Mortgage banking income Gain on life insurance benefits	September 2018 (Dollars in 1,889) 19,528 3,130 1,463	30 2017 (housands) \$13,337 12,881 17,576 3,609	\$303 1,008 1,952 (479 1,463)	2.27 7.83 11.11 (13.27 100.00%	% %)%
Interchange and ATM fees Investment management Mortgage banking income Gain on life insurance benefits Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies	September 2018 (Dollars in 1, \$13,640, 13,889, 19,528, 3,130, 1,463, 2,929, 1,463, 1,4	30 2017 thousands) \$13,337 12,881 17,576 3,609 3,000	\$303 1,008 1,952 (479 1,463 (71 (13)	2.27 7.83 11.11 (13.27 100.00% (2.37	% %)% %
Interchange and ATM fees Investment management Mortgage banking income Gain on life insurance benefits Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance policies Gain on sale of equity securities	September 2018 (Dollars in the \$13,640 13,889 19,528 3,130 1,463 2,929 6	30 2017 (housands) \$13,337 12,881 17,576 3,609 — 3,000 19	\$303 1,008 1,952 (479 1,463 (71 (13)	2.27 7.83 11.11 (13.27 100.00% (2.37 (68.42	% %)% %)%

The primary reasons for the variances in the noninterest income category shown in the preceding tables include:

Investment management income growth was driven primarily from growth in overall assets under administration,

Mortgage banking income decreased in the current year periods due to lower volume, driven in part by a greater percentage of originations being retained within the Company's loan portfolio.

The Company received proceeds on life insurance policies during the third quarter, resulting in a gain of \$1.5 million.

Loan level derivative income decreased as a result of lower customer demand.

Other noninterest income increased due to higher rental income related to equipment leasing, merchant processing income and an increase in equity securities unrealized gains.

[•]Deposit account fees increased due to overall increased household accounts.

Interchange and ATM fees have increased, driven mainly by increased account activity and customer base.

which were \$3.6 billion as of September 30, 2018, an increase of \$373.4 million, or 11.4%, compared to September 30, 2017.

Noninterest Expense The following table sets forth information regarding non-interest expense for the periods shown:

Table 17 - Noninterest Expense

Tubic 17 1 tollitter est Expense					
	Three Months Ended				
	September 3	0	Change		
	2018	2017	Amount	%	
	(Dollars in the	ousands)			
Salaries and employee benefits	\$31,095	\$29,289	\$1,806	6.17	%
Occupancy and equipment expenses	6,310	6,085	225	3.70	%
Data processing & facilities management	1,287	1,272	15	1.18	%
FDIC assessment	725	673	52	7.73	%
Advertising expense	1,395	1,359	36	2.65	%
Consulting expense	1,128	937	191	20.38	%
Debit card expense	755	992	(237)	(23.89)%
Legal fees	752	1,423	(671)	(47.15)%
Loss on sale of equity securities	_	1	(1)	(100.00)%
Merger and acquisition expenses	2,688	_	2,688	100.00%	
Software maintenance	1,079	888	191	21.51	%
Other noninterest expenses	8,225	8,391	(166)	(1.98)%
Total	\$55,439	\$51,310	\$4,129	8.05	%
	Nine Months	Fnded			
	September 3		Change		
	_		Ü	CT .	
	2018	2017	Amount	%	
	(Dollars in the	The state of the s			
Salaries and employee benefits	\$92,483	\$86,267	\$6,216	7.21	%
Occupancy and equipment expenses	20,215	18,302	1,913	10.45	%
Data processing & facilities management	3,837	3,732	105	2.81	%
FDIC assessment	2,214	2,234	(20)	(0.90))%

	September 30		Change		
	2018	2017	Amount	%	
	(Dollars in the	ousands)			
Salaries and employee benefits	\$92,483	\$86,267	\$6,216	7.21	%
Occupancy and equipment expenses	20,215	18,302	1,913	10.45	%
Data processing & facilities management	3,837	3,732	105	2.81	%
FDIC assessment	2,214	2,234	(20)	(0.90))%
Advertising expense	3,684	4,018	(334)	(8.31)%
Consulting expense	2,973	2,753	220	7.99	%
Debit card expense	2,405	2,616	(211)	(8.07)%
Legal fees	2,084	2,074	10	0.48	%
Loss on sale of equity securities	_	6	(6)	(100.00)%
Merger and acquisition expenses	3,122	3,393	(271)	(7.99)%
Software maintenance	3,048	2,714	334	12.31	%
Other noninterest expenses	25,513	24,783	730	2.95	%
Total	\$161,578	\$152,892	\$8,686	5.68	%

The primary reasons for the variances in the noninterest expense category shown in the preceding tables include: The increase in salaries and employee benefits reflects overall increases in the employee base along with increases in expenses associated with merit and incentive programs, payroll taxes, medical insurance and post-retirement benefit costs.

Occupancy and equipment expense increases were attributable to rental expense depreciation on equipment associated with the Company's equipment leasing initiative, as well as increases in snow removal for the nine month periods.

- Advertising expenses fluctuate due to timing of various campaigns and strategic initiatives.
- Debit card expense decreased due to reduced network processing costs.
- Legal fees decreased for the three month period due to loan work out costs associated with the bankruptcy of a large commercial customer in September of 2017.

Merger and acquisition expense in 2018 consists primarily of investment banker, legal, and professional fees associated with the pending acquisitions of MNB, which is anticipated to close in the fourth quarter of 2018, and BHB, which is anticipated to close in the first half of 2019. Merger and acquisition expense in 2017 is primarily related to compensation and severance agreements, as well as contract termination costs related to the Island Bancorp acquisition, which closed in the second quarter of 2017.

Income Taxes The tax effect of all income and expense transactions is recognized by the Company in each year's consolidated statements of income, regardless of the year in which the transactions are reported for income tax purposes. The following table sets forth information regarding the Company's tax provision and applicable tax rates for the periods indicated:

Table 18 - Tax Provision and Applicable Tax Rates

THE TO THE TOTAL WITH THE PROPERTY OF THE TAIL T				
	Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Months	Ended
	September 3	30	September 30	
	2018	2017	2018	2017
	(Dollars in th	ousands)		
Combined federal and state income tax provision	\$9,969	\$12,681	\$26,046	\$32,426
Effective income tax rate	23.19 %	34.71 %	22.12 %	33.23 %
Blended statutory tax rate	28.22 %	40.86 %	28.22 %	40.86 %

The Company's blended statutory and effective tax rates in 2018 are lower as compared to the year ago period due primarily to the impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax Act"), which decreased the maximum Federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%. Additionally, the effective tax rates in the table above are lower than the blended statutory tax rates due to certain tax preference assets such as life insurance policies and tax exempt bonds, as well as federal tax credits recognized primarily in connection with the New Markets Tax Credit program and investments in low income housing project investments. Lastly, the effective tax rate includes the impact of excess tax benefits associated with stock compensation transactions and other discrete items which can fluctuate year over year.

The Company's subsidiaries have received several awards of tax credit allocation authority under the federal New Markets Tax Credit program which enable the Company to recognize federal tax credits over a seven year period totaling 39.0% of the total award. The Company recognizes federal tax credits as capital investments that are made into its subsidiaries to fund below market interest rate loans to qualifying businesses in low income communities. The following table details the remaining tax credit recognition by year associated with this program:

Table 19 - New Markets Tax Credit Recognition Schedule

Tubic 17 Tit	WIVILLI	CUS I UZ	Ci cuit ite
Year and			Total
Amount of	2018	2019	Remaining
Investment			Credits
2012 \$21,400	\$1,285	\$ —	\$ 1,285
2013 44,600	2,675	2,675	5,350
Total\$66,000	\$3,960	\$2,675	\$ 6,635

The Company invests in various low income housing projects which are real estate limited partnerships that acquire,

develop, own and operate low and moderate-income housing developments. As a limited partner in these operating partnerships, the Company will receive tax credits and tax deductions for losses incurred by the underlying properties. The investments are accounted for using the proportional amortization method and will be amortized over various periods through 2032, which represents the period that the tax credits and other tax benefits will be utilized. The total committed investment in these partnerships is \$47.5

million, of which \$45.5 million has been funded as of September 30, 2018. It is expected that the limited partnership investments will generate a net tax benefit of approximately \$1.1 million for the full calendar year of 2018 and a total of \$6.7 million over the remaining life of the investments from the combination of the tax credits and operating losses.

Risk Management

The Company's Board of Directors and Executive Management have identified significant risk categories which affect the Company. The risk categories include: credit risk, operations risk, compliance risk, strategic and reputation risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors has approved an Enterprise Risk Management Policy that addresses each category of risk. The Senior Portfolio Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Information Officer, Director of Residential Lending, Compliance Officer, Executive Vice President of Commercial Lending and other members of management provide regular reports to the Board of Directors, identifying key risk issues and plans to mitigate key risks. The Board of Directors seeks to ensure the level of risk is maintained within limits established by both the Risk Management Policy and other previously approved policies.

Credit Risk Credit risk represents the possibility that the Company's borrowing customers or other counterparties may not repay loans or other contractual obligations according to their terms due to changes in the financial capacity, ability and willingness of such borrowing customers or counterparties to meet their obligations. In some cases, the collateral securing the payment of the loans may be sufficient to assure repayment, but in other cases the Company may experience significant credit losses which could have an adverse effect on its operating results. The Company makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of its loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of its borrowers and counterparties and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of loans. For further discussion regarding the credit risk and the credit quality of the Company's loan portfolio, see Note 4, "Loans, Allowance for Loan Losses, and Credit Quality" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof.

Operations Risk Operations risk is the risk of loss due to human behavior, inadequate or failed internal systems and controls, and external influences such as market conditions, fraudulent activities, natural disasters and security risks. The potential for operational risk exposure exists throughout the organization. Integral to the Company's performance is the continued effectiveness of the Company's technical systems, operational infrastructure, relationships with third parties and the associates and key executives in day-to-day and ongoing operations. Failure by any or all of these resources subjects the Company to risks that may vary in size, scale and scope. These risks include, but are not limited to, operational or technical failures, unlawful tampering with technical systems, cyber security, terrorist activities, ineffectiveness or exposure due to interruption in third party support, as well as the loss of key individuals or failure on the part of the key individuals to perform properly. The Bank has an Operations Risk Management Committee that meets monthly and reports to the Board quarterly, or more frequently if warranted. The Committee is chaired by the Director of Risk Management and members of the Committee include representatives from Audit, Finance, Technology, Operations, Information Security, Compliance and periodic attendance from business units throughout the organization. An operations risk management report is updated quarterly and reviewed with the Board. Compliance Risk Compliance risk represents the risk of regulatory sanctions or financial loss resulting from the Company's failure to comply with rules and regulations issued by the various banking agencies, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the NASDAQ Stock Market, and standards of good banking practice. Activities which may expose the Company to compliance risk include, but are not limited to, those dealing with the prevention of money laundering, privacy and data protection, adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, community reinvestment initiatives and employment and tax matters. Compliance risk is mitigated through the use of written policies and procedures, training of staff, and monitoring of activities for adherence to those procedures. The Bank has a Compliance Committee that meets quarterly and updates the Board and management quarterly or more frequently if warranted. The Committee is chaired by the Director of Compliance, and members of the Committee include representatives from each of the principal business lines as well as Enterprise Risk Management, Audit, Finance, Technology and Information Security.

Strategic and Reputation Risk Strategic and reputation risk represents the risk of loss due to impairment of reputation, failure to fully develop and execute business plans, and failure to assess current and new opportunities and threats in business, markets, and products. Management seeks to mitigate strategic and reputational risk through

annual strategic planning, frequent executive strategic reviews, ongoing competitive and technological observation, assessment processes of new product, new branch, and new business initiatives, adherence to ethical standards, a philosophy of customer advocacy, a structured process of customer complaint resolution, and ongoing reputational monitoring, crisis management planning, and management tools.

Market Risk Market risk is the sensitivity of income to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and other market-driven rates or prices. Interest rate sensitivity is the most significant market risk to which the Company is exposed.

Interest rate risk is the sensitivity of income to changes in interest rates. Changes in interest rates, as well as fluctuations in the level and duration of assets and liabilities, affect net interest income, the Company's primary source of revenue. Interest

Table of Contents

rate risk arises directly from the Company's core banking activities. In addition to directly impacting net interest income, changes in the level of interest rates can also affect the amount of loans originated, the timing of cash flows on loans and securities, and the fair value of securities and derivatives, as well as other effects.

The primary goal of interest rate risk management is to control this risk within limits approved by the Board of Directors. These limits reflect the Company's tolerance for interest rate risk over both short-term and long-term horizons. The Company attempts to manage interest rate risk by identifying, quantifying, and where appropriate, hedging its exposure. If assets and liabilities do not re-price simultaneously and in equal volume, the potential for interest rate exposure exists. It is the Company's objective to maintain stability in the growth of net interest income through the maintenance of an appropriate mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and, when necessary, within limits management determines to be prudent, through the use of off-balance sheet hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps, floors and caps.

The Company quantifies its interest rate exposures using net interest income simulation models, as well as simpler gap analysis, and Economic Value of Equity analysis. Key assumptions in these simulation analyses relate to behavior of interest rates and behavior of the Company's deposit and loan customers. The most material assumptions relate to the prepayment of mortgage assets (including mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities) and the life and sensitivity of nonmaturity deposits (e.g. DDA, NOW, savings and money market). In the case of prepayment of mortgage assets, assumptions are derived from published dealer median prepayment estimates for comparable mortgage loans. The risk of prepayment tends to increase when interest rates fall. Since future prepayment behavior of loan customers is uncertain, interest rate sensitivity of loans cannot be determined exactly and actual behavior may differ from assumptions.

Based upon the net interest income simulation models, the company currently forecasts that the Bank's assets re-price faster than the liabilities. As a result, the net interest income of the Bank will benefit as market rates increase. Conversely, if rates were to fall, the net interest margin of the Bank is expected to contract. The Company runs several scenarios to quantify and effectively assist in managing this position. These scenarios include instantaneous parallel shifts in market rates as well as gradual (12-24 months) shifts in market rates.

The results of all scenarios and the impact to net interest income are outlined in the table below:

Table 20 - Interest Rate Sensitivity

	September 30							
	2018				2017			
	Year	1	Year	r 2	Year	r 1	Year	2
Parallel rate shocks (basis points)								
-100	(6.5))%	(7.0)%	(9.5)%	(12.4)%
+100	4.3	%	9.4	%	5.7	%	9.1	%
+200	8.0	%	15.0	%	11.1	%	16.9	%
+300	11.8	%	21.0	%	16.4	%	24.7	%
+400	15.6	%	26.7	%	21.8	%	32.3	%
Conduct mate shifts (hasis mainte)								
Gradual rate shifts (basis points)								
-100 over 12 months	(2.7))%	(5.7))%	(4.9)%	(11.2))%
+200 over 12 months	3.9	%	13.7	%	5.3	%	14.9	%
+400 over 24 months	3.9	%	17.3	%	5.3	%	20.0	%
Alternative scenarios								

Flat up 200 basis points scenario 3.9 % 12.9 % 5.6 % 14.9 %

As previously noted, the results in the table above are dependent on material assumptions. For instance, asymmetrical rate behavior can have a material impact on the simulation results. If competition for deposits prompts the Company to raise rates on those liabilities more quickly than is assumed in the simulation analysis without a corresponding increase in asset yields, net interest income would be negatively impacted. Alternatively, if the Company is able to lag increases in deposit rates as loans re-price upward, net interest income would be positively impacted.

The most significant factors affecting market risk exposure of the Company's net interest income during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 were the shape of the U.S. Government securities and interest rate swap yield curve, the U.S. prime interest rate and LIBOR rates, and the interest rates being offered on long-term fixed rate loans. The Company manages the interest rate risk inherent in both its loan and borrowing portfolios by utilizing interest rate swap agreements and interest rate caps and floors. An interest rate swap is an agreement whereby one party agrees to pay a floating rate of interest on a notional principal amount in exchange for receiving a fixed rate of interest on the same notional amount for a predetermined period of time from a second party. Interest rate caps and floors are agreements whereby one party agrees to pay a floating rate of interest on a notional principal amount for a predetermined period of time to a second party if certain market interest rate thresholds are realized. The amounts relating to the notional principal amount are not actually exchanged. Additionally, the Company may manage the interest rate risk inherent in its mortgage banking operations by entering into forward sales contracts. Prior to closing and funding certain 1-4 family residential mortgage loans, an interest rate lock commitment is generally extended to the borrower. During the period from commitment date to closing date, the Company is subject to the risk that market rates of interest may change. If market rates rise, investors generally will pay less to purchase such loans resulting in a reduction in the gain on sale of the loans or, possibly, a loss. In an effort to mitigate such risk, forward delivery sales commitments are executed, under which the Company agrees to deliver whole mortgage loans to various investors. See Note 8, "Derivative and Hedging Activities" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof for additional information regarding the Company's Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company's earnings are not directly or materially impacted by movements in foreign currency rates or commodity

prices. Movements in equity prices may have a modest impacted by movements in foreign currency rates or commodity prices. Movements in equity prices may have a modest impact on earnings by affecting the volume of activity or the amount of fees from investment-related business lines. See *Note 3*, "Securities" within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof.

Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not have the ability to generate adequate amounts of cash in the most economical way for the institution to meet its ongoing obligations to pay deposit withdrawals, service borrowings, and to fund loan commitments. The Company's primary sources of funds are deposits, borrowings, and the amortization, prepayment and maturities of loans and securities. The Bank utilizes its extensive branch network to access retail customers who

provide a base of in-market core deposits. These funds are principally comprised of demand deposits, interest checking accounts, savings accounts, and money market accounts. Deposit levels are greatly influenced by interest rates, economic conditions, and competitive factors.

The Company actively manages its liquidity position under the direction of the Asset-Liability Committee of the Bank ("ALCO"). The Company's primary measure of short-term liquidity is the Total Basic Surplus/Deficit as a percentage of assets. This ratio, which is an analysis of the relationship between liquid assets plus available funding at the FHLB less short-term liabilities relative to total assets, was within policy limits at September 30, 2018. The Total Basic Surplus/Deficit measure is affected primarily by changes in deposits, securities and short-term investments, loans and borrowings. An increase in deposits, without a corresponding increase in nonliquid assets, will improve the Total Basic Surplus/Deficit measure, whereas, an increase in loans, with no increase in deposits, will decrease the measure. Other factors affecting the Total Basic Surplus/Deficit measure include collateral requirements at the FHLB, changes in the securities portfolio, and the mix of deposits.

The Bank seeks to increase deposits without adversely impacting the weighted average cost of those funds. As part of a prudent liquidity risk management practice, the Company maintains various liquidity sources, some of which are only accessed on a contingency basis. Accordingly, management has implemented funding strategies that include FHLB advances, Federal Reserve Bank borrowing capacity and repurchase agreement lines. These nondeposit funds are also viewed as a contingent source of liquidity and, when profitable lending and investment opportunities exist, access to such funds provides a means to grow the balance sheet.

Borrowing capacity at the FHLB and the Federal Reserve is impacted by the amount and type of assets available to be pledged. For example, a prime, one-to-four family, residential loan, may provide 75 cents of borrowing capacity for every \$1.00 pledged, whereas, a commercial loan may provide a lower amount. As a result, the Company's strategic lending decisions can also affect its liquidity position.

The Company can raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or unsecured debt privately or publicly and has done so in the past. Additionally, the Company is able to enter into additional repurchase agreements or acquire brokered deposits at its discretion. The availability and cost of equity or debt on an unsecured basis is dependent on many factors. Some factors that will impact this source of liquidity are the Company's financial position, the market environment, and the Company's credit rating. As such, the Company is careful to monitor the various factors that could impact its ability to raise liquidity through these channels.

The table below shows current and unused liquidity capacity from various sources as of the dates indicated:

Table 21 - Sources of Liquidity

	September 30, 2018			December 31, 2017			
	Outstanding (Dollars in the	Capacity		Outstanding	Additional Borrowing Capacity		
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston		\$985,424	(1)	\$53,264	\$954,789	(1)	
Federal Reserve Bank of Boston		701,211	(2)	_	720,005	(2)	
Unpledged Securities	_	463,980		_	375,155		
Customer repurchase agreements	141,176	_	(3)	162,679	_	(3)	
Junior subordinated debentures	73,078	_	(3)	73,073	_	(3)	
Subordinated debt	34,717	_	(3)	34,682	_	(3)	
Reciprocal deposits	51,738	_	(3)	_	_		
Brokered deposits	6,000	_	(3)	54,541 (4))—	(3)	
	\$357,476	\$2,150,615	5	\$378,239	\$2,049,949)	

⁽¹⁾ Loans with a carrying value of \$1.5 billion at both September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 have been pledged to the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston resulting in this additional unused borrowing capacity.

In addition to policies used for managing operational liquidity, the Board of Directors and the ALCO recognize the need to establish reasonable guidelines for managing through an environment of heightened liquidity risk. Catalysts for elevated liquidity risk can be Bank-specific issues and/or systemic industry-wide events. It is therefore the responsibility of the Board and the ALCO to institute systems and controls to provide advanced detection of potentially significant funding shortages, establish methods for assessing and monitoring risk levels, and institute prompt responses that may alleviate/circumvent a potential liquidity crisis. As such, the Board of Directors and the ALCO have put a Liquidity Contingency Plan in place. The overall goal of this plan is to provide a framework for the Bank to help detect liquidity problems promptly and appropriately address potential liquidity problems in a timely manner. In a period of perceived heightened liquidity risk, the Liquidity Contingency Plan provides for the establishment of a Liquidity Crisis Task Force. The Liquidity Crisis Task Force is responsible for monitoring the potential for a liquidity crisis and for establishing and executing an appropriate response.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements There were no material changes in off-balance sheet financial instruments during the three months ended September 30, 2018, with the exception of the merger agreement entered into on September 20, 2018 for the BHB acquisition.

See *Note 8, "Derivative and Hedging Activities"* and *Note 13, "Commitments and Contingencies"* within Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 hereof for more information relating to the Company's other off-balance sheet financial instruments.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments, and Contingencies There were no material changes in contractual obligations, commitments, or contingencies during the three months ended September 30, 2018. Please refer to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 for a complete table of contractual obligations, commitments and contingencies.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information required by this Item 3 is included in the "Risk Management" section of Item 2 of Part I of this Form

⁽²⁾ Loans with a carrying value of \$1.2 billion at both September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 have been pledged to the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston resulting in this additional unused borrowing capacity.

⁽³⁾ The additional borrowing capacity has not been assessed for these categories.

Inclusive of \$48.5 million of reciprocal deposits acquired through participation in the Promontory Interfinancial Network as of and December 31, 2017. The (4) Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act, which was promulgated during the second quarter of 2018, states that most reciprocal deposits are no longer treated as brokered deposits. As such, the Company is prospectively reporting deposits from the Promontory Interfinancial Network as

10-Q, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer along with the Company's Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer along with the Company's Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the third quarter of 2018 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

At September 30, 2018, the Bank was involved in pending lawsuits that arose in the ordinary course of business. Management has reviewed these pending lawsuits with legal counsel and has taken into consideration the view of counsel as to their outcome. In the opinion of management, the final disposition of pending lawsuits is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Company intends to incur debt to fund cash payments required in connection with the BHB merger.

The Company will be required to pay cash consideration in connection with the closing of the merger. Although the merger agreement does not include a financing contingency, the Company does not currently believe that it will have sufficient cash at closing at the holding company level to pay the cash portion of the merger consideration and other transaction costs and expenses required to complete the merger. Accordingly, the Company intends to issue debt in order to raise cash to complete the merger. If the Company is unable to issue debt on terms that are acceptable or at all, the Bank may have to pay a special dividend to the Company to supply the Company with the cash needed to complete the merger. However, any special dividend is subject to regulatory approval and the cash reserves and regulatory capital of the Bank may be materially adversely affected by the special cash dividend. The Company has not entered into any definitive agreement for debt financing, and its ability to obtain debt financing is subject to various factors, including market conditions, the Company's operating performance and financial condition and third party credit ratings. The Company cannot assure you that we will be able to secure debt financing in a sufficient amount, on acceptable terms, in a timely manner or at all, and we further cannot assure you that in the event we is unable to secure debt financing, the Bank will receive regulatory approval to pay a special dividend to the Company.

The Company and the Bank will have over \$10 billion in total consolidated assets as a result of the BHB merger.

The Company and the Bank will have over \$10 billion in total consolidated assets as a result of the BHB merger, which will lead to increased regulation.

Upon consummation of the merger, and as of September 30, 2018 on a pro forma basis giving effect to the merger, the Company and the Bank will each have over \$11 billion in total consolidated assets. Accordingly, the Company and the Bank will become subject to certain regulations that apply only to depository institution holding companies or depository institutions with total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more.

Debit card interchange fee restrictions set forth in Section 1075 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, which is known as the Durbin Amendment, as implemented by regulations of the Federal Reserve Board, cap the maximum debit interchange fee that a debit card issuer may receive per transaction at the sum of \$0.21 plus five basis points. A debit card issuer that adopts certain fraud prevention procedures may charge an additional \$0.01 per transaction. Debit card issuers with total consolidated assets of less than \$10 billion, which currently includes the Bank and Blue Hills Bank, are exempt from these interchange fee restrictions. The exemption for small issuers ceases to apply as of July 1st of the year following the calendar year in which the debit card issuer has total

consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more at calendar year-end. As a result, if the bank merger is consummated in 2019, the Bank will become subject to the interchange restrictions of the Durbin Amendment beginning July 1, 2020. the Company and the Bank are currently evaluating the financial impact of the Bank becoming subject to the Durbin Amendment.

In addition, an insured depository institution with total assets of \$10 billion or more is subject to supervision, examination, and enforcement with respect to consumer protection laws by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, which we refer to as the CFPB. Under its current policies, the CFPB will assert jurisdiction in the first quarter after the call reports of merging insured depository institutions, on a combined basis, show total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more for four consecutive quarters, including quarters ended prior to the merger. As a result, the Company expects the Bank to become subject to CFPB supervision, examination and enforcement at the beginning of the quarter following consummation of the bank merger.

There are other regulatory requirements that apply to insured depository institution holding companies and insured depository institutions with total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more. These include, but are not limited to, (i) the establishment by publicly traded depository institution holding companies with \$10 billion or more in assets of a risk committee responsible for oversight of enterprise-wide risk management practices that are commensurate with the entity's structure, risk profile, complexity, activities and size and (ii) an institution with total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more no longer being entitled to benefit from the FDIC's offset of the effect of the increase in the statutory minimum Deposit Insurance Fund reserve ratio to 1.35% from the former statutory minimum of 1.15% that is required for institutions with assets of less than \$10 billion by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act.

In addition, Congress and/or regulatory agencies may impose new requirements or surcharges on these institutions in the future. The Economic Growth, Regulatory Reform, and Consumer Protection Act, which was enacted on May 24, 2018, includes provisions that, as they are implemented, relieve banking organizations with total consolidated assets of less than \$10 billion (and that satisfy certain other conditions) from risk-based capital requirements, restrictions on proprietary trading and investment and sponsorship in hedge funds and private equity funds known as the Volcker Rule, and certain other regulatory requirements. Once the Company and the Bank have total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more, the Company and the Bank will no longer qualify for any of the foregoing relief.

There can be no assurance that the benefits of the merger will outweigh the regulatory costs resulting from the Company and the Bank having total consolidated assets of \$10 billion or more.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

- (a) Not applicable.
- (b) Not applicable.
- (c) The following table sets forth information regarding the Company's repurchases of its common stock during the three months ended September 30, 2018:

	Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities					
	Shares	u Anterage Price s dd aid Per Share	Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plan or Program (2)	Maximum Number of Shares That May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plan or Program		
Period						
July 1 to July 31, 2018		\$	_	_		
August 1 to August 31, 2018		\$—	_	_		
September 1 to September 30, 2018	2,604	\$87.09	_	_		
Total	2,604		_	_		

⁽¹⁾ Shares repurchased relate to the surrendering of shares in connection with the exercise and/or vesting of equity compensation grants to satisfy related tax withholding obligations.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities—None

⁽²⁾ The Company does not currently have a stock repurchase program or plan in place.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures - Not Applicable

Item 5. Other Information—None

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Index

No. Exhibit

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 20, 2018 by and among Independent Bank Corp., Rockland

- 2.1 <u>Trust Company, Blue Hills Bancorp, Inc., and Blue Hills Bank is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to form 8-K filed on September 24, 2018.</u>
- 31.1 Section 302 Certification of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.*
- 31.2 Section 302 Certification of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.*
- 32.1 Section 906 Certification of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.+
- 32.2 Section 906 Certification of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached hereto.+
- The instance document does not appear in the interactive data file because its XBRL tags are embedded within the inline XBRL document
- *Filed herewith
- +Furnished herewith

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INDEPENDENT BANK CORP.

(registrant)

November 1, 2018 /s/ Christopher Oddleifson

Christopher Oddleifson

President and

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

November 1, 2018 /s/ Robert D. Cozzone

Robert D. Cozzone Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)